

**Title VI Program** 

May 2020 Revised March 2023 Administrative Modification November 2023

> Submitted to: Marjorie Hughes Regional Civil Rights Officer Federal Transit Administration 200 West Adams Street, Suite 320 Chicago, Illinois 60606

## Butler County Regional Transit Authority (BCRTA) Title VI Program, January 2020 Revised March 2023

## Contents

INTRODUCTION	4
BCRTA Title VI Plan Policy Statement	5
GENERAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS	5
Title VI Notice to Public.	5
Title VI Complaint Procedures.	6
Title VI Complaint Form.	7
Record of Title VI Investigations, Complaints, or Lawsuits.	7
Public Participation Plan	8
BCRTA POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL	9
Public Comment on Fare and Service Changes	9
Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Four Factor Analysis & Language Assistance Plan.	10
Membership of Non-Elected Committees and Councils	10
BCRTA Monitoring of Subrecipients	10
Equity Analysis of Construction Projects	10
Evidence of Board Review and Approval of Title VI Program and Policies.	10
Service Standards & Policies	10
Operating Mandates/Board Policy	11
Service Design Guidelines	11
Service Evaluation Factors	11
BCRTA Service Standards by Mode as of January 1, 2023	11
Vehicle Load	11
Peak and Off-Peak	11
Vehicle Headway	11
On-Time Performance (OTP)	12
Service Availability	12
Vehicle Assignment	12
Transit Amenities	12
Bus Stop Signage	13
Concrete Board Pad Location	13
Benches	13
Shelters	13
Caps and Benches	13
Trash Receptacles	14
Schedule Holders and Real-time Displays	14
Maintenance of Amenities	14
Appendix A: Exhibits	14
Exhibit 1: Summary of BCRTA General Public Transit Services	14

Regional Routes:		15
R1		15
R3		17
R6		19
BCRTA Rider Guide:		21
U Routes:		23
U1/U1W		23
U3, U3X AM and U3	X PM	25
U4 and U4D:		28
Exhibit 2: Title VI Complair	nt Form	
Exhibit 3: BCRTA Board Re	solution Approving 2023 Title VI Plan	33
Exhibit 4: BCRTA Vehicle R	oster	
Exhibit 5: Safe Harbor Ana	lysis 2023	35
Appendix B: Language Ass	istance Plan	
Analysis Using Four	Factor Framework	
Factor 1: The numb	er and proportion of LEP persons served or encountered in the eligible service population	
Factor 2: The freque	ency with which LEP individuals come into contact with your programs, activities, and services.	39
Factor 3: The impor	tance to LEP persons of your program, activities, and services	45
Factor 4: The resou	rces available to the recipient and costs.	45
Plan for Implementation		
Appendix C: Public Particip	pation Plan and Hearings/Engagements	
References		50

## Butler County Regional Transit Authority (BCRTA) Title VI Program, May 2020 Revised March 2023

## INTRODUCTION

## Brief Description of BCRTA as Transit Provider Operating Fewer than 50 Fixed Route Vehicles and with No Subrecipients

Butler County RTA is an FTA designated recipient in Butler County, Ohio with no subrecipients. BCRTA operates 13 motor bus vehicles in peak service and is a part of the Cincinnati Urbanized Area.

From 1999-2002, BCRTA operated countywide fixed route and demand response services (In 2002, BCRTA shut down its directly-provided countywide public transit services due to the defeat of a countywide sales tax levy). Since 2003, BCRTA has funded park-n-ride commuter bus services between Butler County and downtown Cincinnati through a contract with the Southwest Ohio Regional Transit Authority (SORTA). Since 2005, BCRTA has been reintroducing public transit services in Butler County with no major service reductions or fare changes since that time. Until 2009, BCRTA primarily offered public, on demand, door-to door services.

In 2009, BCRTA began commuter bus services between Middletown and Hamilton. One (1) transit bus was used for this service during peak hours. In 2010, BCRTA introduced a Middletown-Oxford commuter bus service, using an additional peak bus. In 2012, BCRTA introduced a third commuter route between Oxford and Hamilton using two (2) peak buses. In August 2013, BCRTA began fixed route bus service in Oxford, Ohio using 10 peak buses. In April 2014, BCRTA began fixed route bus service from Hamilton to Tri-County Mall adding connections to the Cincinnati Metro system via the new R4 route. In 2016, BCRTA began fixed route bus service the R6 Job Connector to facilitate employment growth along a heavily distribution/manufacturing corridor in Butler County.

In 2018, BCRTA started operating a new commuter route (R2) connecting Dayton and Butler County in a test trial with the City of Middletown, City of Monroe, and Premier Health. The trial ended March 21, 2020 and will now be offered as a curb-to-curb program under BCRTA's BGo service. Also, the R4 and R2 Routes were removed from service. Both the R4 and the R2 saw decreases in ridership during the pandemic and never returned to a level close to that of pre pandemic. In 2019, the National Transit Database worked with BCRTA to reclassify its routes based on current statistics.

In 2019 BCRTA provided 589,470 trips. In 2020 BCRTA provided 188,788 trips. In 2021 BCRTA provided 257,920 trips and finally in 2022 BCRTA provided 414,713 trips. BCRTA projects almost 525,000 directly provided trips in 2023 and has an annual operating budget of approximately \$8.2 million. Currently, BCRTA has a fleet of fifty-five (55) buses, employs seven (11) full time administrative employees, sixty-nine (69) full-time and eight (8) part-time bus operators, three (3) dispatchers, two (2) supervisors, one (1) full-time and one (1) part-time driver trainer, four (4) full-time mechanics, one (1) maintenance manager, and uses one (1) central facility for administration, scheduling and dispatching, vehicle storage and maintenance, and other miscellaneous transit purposes.

As of March 2023, BCRTA operates: (7) motor bus or fixed routes. BCRTA is in the process of

taking in one commuter route that is currently subcontracted and operated by SORTA (42X) and rebranding it in partnership with the City of Middletown.

Current services are summarized in Appendix A: Exhibit 1.

## BCRTA Title VI Plan Policy Statement

The BCRTA assures that no person shall on the grounds of race, color, sex, age, disability or national origin, as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (P.L. 100.259) be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity.

The BCRTA further assures every effort will be made to ensure nondiscrimination in all of its program's activities, whether those programs and activities are federally funded or not.

In the event that the BCRTA distributes federal aid funds to another entity, the BCRTA will include Title VI language in all written agreements and will monitor for compliance. The Manager of Administration serves as the Title VI Coordinator of the BCRTA and is responsible for initiating and monitoring Title VI activities, preparing required reports and other BCRTA responsibilities as required by 23 Code of Federal Regulation (CFR) 200 and 49 Code of Federal Regulation 21.

## **GENERAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS**

## Title VI Notice to Public.

The following notice is posted on the BCRTA website at www.butlercountyrta.com, within BCRTA vehicles, in the BCRTA facility, and included in all public information materials such as service brochures, notices, etc.

## **Title VI Notice of Public Rights**

## The Butler County Regional Transit Authority

The Butler County Regional Transit Authority (BCRTA) operates all services, <u>routes</u> and accommodations without regard to race, color, or national origin in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Any person who believes she or he has been aggrieved by any unlawful discriminatory practice under title VI may file a complaint with the BCRTA of Hamilton, Ohio and/or the Federal Transit Administration (FTA).

For more information on the BCRTA civil rights program, and the procedures to file a complaint, contact 513-785-5237, visit the BCRTA administrative office at 3045 Moser Court, Hamilton, Ohio 45011, or visit www.butlercountyrta.com.

A complainant may file a complaint directly with the FTA by completing a Title VI Complaint Form and mailing it to the Office of Civil Rights, Attention: Title VI Program Coordinator, East Building, 5<sup>th</sup> Floor - TCR, 1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE, Washington, DC 20590.

For information in another language, contact BCRTA at 513-785-4346.

Para obtener mas informacion llame a BCRTA at 513-785-4346.

## Title VI Complaint Procedures.

These procedures apply to all complaints filed under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, and all related statutes, relating to any program or activity administered by BCRTA or its subrecipients, consultants, and/or contractors. Intimidation or retaliation of any kind is prohibited by law.

These procedures do not deny the right of the complainant to file formal complaints with other state or federal agencies, or to seek private counsel for complaints alleging discrimination. These procedures are part of an administrative process that does not provide for remedies that include punitive damages or compensatory remuneration for the complainant.

Every effort will be made to obtain early resolution of complaints at the lowest level possible. The option of informal mediation meeting(s) between the affected parties and the BCRTA may be utilized for resolution, at any stage of the process. The Title VI Coordinator will make every effort to pursue a resolution to the complaint. Any individual, group of individuals or entity that believes they have been subjected to discrimination prohibited under Title VI and related statutes may file a written complaint to the following address:

> Title VI Coordinator Butler County Regional Transit Authority 3045 Moser Court Hamilton, OH 45011

The following measures will be taken to resolve Title VI complaints:

- 1) A formal complaint must be filed within 180 days of the alleged occurrence (See Appendix A, Exhibit 2 for BCRTA Title VI complaint form). Complaints shall be in writing and signed by the individual or his/her representative, and will include the complainant's name, address and telephone number; name of alleged discriminating official, basis of complaint (race, color, national origin, sex, disability, age), and the date of alleged act(s). A statement detailing the facts and circumstances of the alleged discrimination must accompany all complaints.
- 2) In the case where a complainant is unable or incapable of providing a written statement, a verbal complaint of discrimination may be made to the BCRTA Title VI Coordinator. Under these circumstances, the complainant will be interviewed, and the BCRTA Title VI Coordinator will assist the complainant in converting the verbal allegations to writing.
- 3) When a complaint is received, the Title VI Coordinator will provide written acknowledgment to the complainant, within ten (10) days by registered mail.
- 4) If a complaint is deemed incomplete, additional information will be requested, and the complainant will be provided 60 business days to submit the required information. Failure to do so may be considered good cause for a determination of no investigative merit.
- 5) Within 15 business days from receipt of a complete complaint, the BCRTA will

determine its jurisdiction in pursuing the matter and whether the complaint has sufficient merit to warrant investigation. Within five (5) days of this decision, the Executive Director or his/her authorized designee will notify the complainant and respondent, by registered mail, informing them of the disposition.

- a. If the decision is not to investigate the complaint, the notification shall specifically state the reason for the decision.
- b. If the complaint is to be investigated, the notification shall state the grounds of the BCRTA's jurisdiction, while informing the parties that their full cooperation will be required in gathering additional information and assisting the investigator.
- 6) When the BCRTA does not have sufficient jurisdiction, the Executive Director or his/her authorized designee will refer the complaint to the appropriate State or Federal agency holding such jurisdiction.
- 7) If the complaint has investigative merit, the Executive Director or his/her authorized designee will assign an investigator. A complete investigation will be conducted, and an investigative report will be submitted to the Executive Director within 60 days from receipt of the complaint. The report will include a narrative description of the incident, summaries of all persons interviewed, and a finding with recommendations and conciliatory measures where appropriate. If the investigation is delayed for any reason, the investigator will notify the appropriate authorities, and an extension will be requested.
- 8) The Executive Director or his/her authorized designee will issue letters of finding to the Complainant and Respondent within 90 days from receipt of the complaint.
- 9) If the Complainant is dissatisfied with the BCRTA resolution of the complaint, he/she has the right to file a complaint with the:

Regional Civil Rights Officer Federal Transit Administration 200 West Adams Street, Suite 320 Chicago, Illinois 60606 Phone: (312) 353-3770 Fax: (312) 886-0351

## Title VI Complaint Form.

See Appendix A: Exhibit 2 for a copy of BCRTA Title VI Complaint Form. The complaint form can also be found on BCRTA website: www.butlercountyrta.com

## *Record of Title VI Investigations, Complaints, or Lawsuits.* None.

## Public Participation Plan.

BCRTA operates according to the BCRTA Board of Trustee Policy shown in Section 2.6 to 1) notify the public to changes in services and/or fares; 2) solicit public input when changes are made to transit service and/or fares; and 3) consider public's input when decisions regarding changes to transit service and/or fares are made.

When soliciting public input BCRTA engages the practices outlined in FTA Circular 4703.1 "Environmental Justice Policy Guidance for Federal Transit Administration Recipients." In particular, when conducting traditional public meetings BCRTA carefully considers the following elements to ensure full community participation, including EJ populations:

- Convenient and accessible locations
- Visual description techniques
- Inclusion of electronically accessible formats
- Time limits for public speakers
- Time limits for BCRTA personnel
- Room arrangements adaptable to crowd size.
- Dedicated personnel and resources for disabled or LEP participants
- Reading levels/literacy
- Description of acronyms
- Reducing content into manageable blocks

BCRTA will also make meaningful efforts to engage the public in non-traditional outreach methods such as partnerships with local community actions agencies, municipalities, informal group meetings and digital media. BCRTA currently maintains supportive engagement relationships with the City of Hamilton, the City of Middletown, and Supports to Encourage Low Income Families (SELF) for the purposes of obtaining public feedback to plans and service changes including those that do not meet the threshold for official comment. BCRTA provides information and communication via Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram:

- www.facebook.com/butlercountyrta
- <u>www.twitter.com/BCRTA</u>
- <u>www.instagram.com/butlercountyrta</u>

Additionally, BCRTA participates in the local Metropolitan Planning Organization's (Ohio-Kentucky-Indiana Regional Council of Governments (OKI)) planning and public participation processes, including the development and updates of the Locally Developed Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plan for the OKI region, a process that includes representatives of public, private and nonprofit transportation and human services providers and participation by the public.

Participation is formalized through an annual Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between OKI and BCRTA.

See Appendix C for a copy of the MOA and current OKI Public Participation Plan.

## BCRTA POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

## **Public Comment on Fare and Service Changes**

Effective Date: 06-15-2011 Reviewed Date: 05-17-2017

BCRTA will specifically seek public comment on fare and service changes under any of the following circumstances:

- 1. Any increase to the full adult fare,
- 2. Any decrease in service in which 25% or more of the total non-contracted system services (based on revenue service hours) are considered for elimination.

When circumstances dictate the solicitation of public comment, then open public meetings and public hearings will be held. The open public meetings may take the form of monthly regular or monthly special BCRTA Board of Trustee meetings. Citizens attending these public meetings where fare or service is considered will be afforded an opportunity to speak to the Board of Trustees. Letters written or referred to the BCRTA with respect to fare or service changes will also be considered at the public meetings.

Additionally, when the BCRTA proposes to increase the fares or decrease service per any of the above circumstances, at least one (1) public hearing will be held prior to the BCRTA Board of Trustee meeting that adopts the budget incorporating the subject fare or service changes.

The Public Hearing will meet the following criteria:

- 1. Published public notice will be given as to the date, time, location and purpose of the public hearing.
- 2. The notice will allow for mailed written public comment in lieu of attendance at the hearing;
- 3. The public notice will be printed at least 10 calendar days prior to the hearing;
- 4. The public hearing will be held in a location accessible to persons with mobility disabilities;
- 5. A record of the proceedings will be made. Transcripts of the proceedings may be obtained at the expense of those requesting such a transcript.
- 6. Comments from the public will be taken up to the closing time of the public hearing. The hearing shall have a duration of no less than one (1) hour for the collection of public comment, and no individual will take more than five (5) minutes to present a view point, and/or the moderator of the public hearing reserves the right to limit comments to five (5) minutes or less;
- 7. For the sake of the record, persons submitting comments at the hearing will be asked to provide their name and address.
- 8. BCRTA officials may make a presentation concerning a fare increase or service reduction;
- 9. The BCRTA Executive Director, the BCRTA Operations Manager, or the President of the BCRTA Board of Trustees will hold, chair, and moderate the public hearing proceedings.

After the Public Hearing, the BCRTA Executive Director will present a summary of the proceedings to the Board of Trustees. The summary will be communicated prior to the BCRTA Board of Trustee meeting that adopts the budget incorporating the subject fare or service changes.

## Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Four Factor Analysis & Language Assistance Plan.

## See Appendix B.

## Membership of Non-Elected Committees and Councils

The BCRTA was created by the Butler County Commissioners in 1994 consistent with Ohio Revised Code 306.32. The originating resolution calls for a nine (9) member Board that serves three (3) year terms. Appointments are the responsibility of the Butler County Commissioners.

21.7% of Butler County's 2021 population is considered minority (9.8% black or African American alone; 5.4% Hispanic or Latino alone; 4.3% Asian alone; and 2.7% two or more races).

The current makeup of the BCRTA Board of Trustees is as follows:

	Total	Minority
Male	6	1
Female	1	0
Vacant	1	

## **BCRTA Monitoring of Subrecipients**

BCRTA has no subrecipients.

## Equity Analysis of Construction Projects.

During the reporting period, BCRTA has not undertaken any construction project that requires an environmental justice analysis.

## Evidence of Board Review and Approval of Title VI Program and Policies.

Appendix A, exhibit 3 contains the Board resolution indicating review and approval of BCRTA 2020 Title VI Program. The BCRTA Board of Trustees will approve updates to the 2023 plan on March 15, 2023

## Service Standards & Policies

BCRTA Board of Trustees continues its leadership commitment in exploring transportation options for Butler County citizens and visitors through a strategy of targeting identified needs through partnerships and coordination with other regional transportation providers. The BCRTA Board of Trustees adopted the following service standards and policies in March 2010 to guide service development:

## **Operating Mandates/Board Policy**

- 1. BCRTA will operate with a balanced budget.
- 2. BCRTA will grow its ridership through increased use of existing programs and implementation of new services.
- 3. BCRTA will leverage its capital resources (facilities and equipment) through community partnerships with qualified organizations.

## Service Design Guidelines

As a result of community input, the BCRTA Board of Trustees has made a leadership commitment to adopting a new mobility paradigm tailored to the unique needs of Butler County. A mobility mission calls for creative transportation strategies that leverage local resources and services to move people efficiently and effectively. The focus is on mobility versus mode.

The BCRTA has committed to explore and build upon the following service categories:

- Community requests wherein the sponsoring agency/jurisdiction is willing to contribute at least 45% of the operating costs.
- Fixed-route park-and-ride services to move workers to/from neighboring counties.
- Customized employer-driven solutions to accessing a larger skilled labor pool.
- Collaborative mobility solutions for improving quality of life for target populations.
- County connections to Miami University educational opportunities.

## Service Evaluation Factors

Annually the Board of Trustees will monitor and evaluate the following performance metrics:

## BCRTA Service Standards by Mode as of January 1, 2023

## Vehicle Load

## Peak and Off-Peak

Motor Bus	Less than or equal to 1.47 passengers per seat.
Commuter bus	Less than or equal to 1.2 passengers per seat.
Demand Response	Less than or equal to 1.0 passengers per seat.

## Vehicle Headway

	Peak	Off-Peak
Motor Bus	Less than or equal to 30 minutes.	Less than or equal to 60 minutes.
Commuter bus	Less than or equal to 120 minutes.	Less than or equal to 120 minutes.

Increased vehicle headways shall first be applied to routes with a history of sustainable high load factor.

## **On-Time Performance (OTP)**

Peak and Off-Peak

	Acceptable Early	Acceptable Late	Minimum Standard On- Time
Motor Bus	0-1 minutes	0-5 minutes	85%
Commuter bus	0-1 minutes	0-5 minutes	85%
Demand Response	0-15 minutes	0-15 minutes	90%

On-time performance is measured by calculating arrivals at designated time points only.

## Service Availability

BCRTA regularly evaluates the county-wide trips provided per capita based upon the most recent census data available. BCRTA's current goal is 25%. BCRTA expects to provide more than 80% trips per capita in 2013 due to a significant expansion of service in 2013. BCRTA will re-evaluate this goal in 2024.

	Minimum Distance between Designated Stops
Motor Bus	1 miles
Commuter bus	10 miles

## Vehicle Assignment

Currently, BCRTA has 48 revenue vehicles (see Appendix A: Exhibit 4 for BCRTA vehicle roster) to assign to meet service needs. Each morning, the BCRTA Vehicle and Facility Manager provides the BCRTA Transportation Coordinator with a list of vehicles available for service (identifying fleet scheduled for preventive maintenance and/or repair). The BCRTA Transportation Coordinator assigns available vehicles to meet passenger load and wheelchair requirements. Vehicle assignments vary daily. Coordinators are fully trained to cycle all vehicles through all routes and locations to ensure equitable distribution of assets based on age and condition regardless of community or passenger groups.

## **Transit Amenities**

BCRTA operates seven (7) motor bus fixed routes in Butler County, Ohio. The following amenities practice relates to these services. Other than rider guides and other customer information pieces, passenger amenities are not provided for demand response services. BCRTA has shelters located at the Kroger in the City of Oxford, and at the Miami University City of Hamilton campus. A property owner has installed a bus shelter at the Meijer park-and-ride along the Oxford-Hamilton commuter route.

Miami University owns, places, and maintains most passenger amenities for fixed route bus service in Oxford, Ohio.

BCRTA recognizes the importance of passenger amenities in providing comfortable and convenient service to system users as well as attracting new ridership. Amenity, as defined for BCRTA purposes is "any physical improvement made to a bus stop or transit facility that contributes to a rider's comfort, access, and/or safety while either waiting to board, boarding or alighting any BCRTA bus." Amenities will be considered for any BCRTA fixed route and commuter bus service.

There are seven specific amenities that BCRTA will consider: bus signage, concrete boarding pads, benches, shelters, trash receptacles, concrete bus pads, and schedule holders/real-time displays. Determining factors that will be used to evaluate whether or not a particular bus stop will be eligible for placement of a specific amenity include but are not limited to: ridership levels, operating characteristics, traffic patterns, terrain, local ordinances or regulations governing the placement of transit amenities, and levels of elderly and disabled boardings.

## Bus Stop Signage

Bus stop signs are placed to notify passengers where the bus will stop, to provide reference for bus operators, and to assist in marketing the system. To mark the location of all fixed route and commuter bus stops, BCRTA will provide signs and install them free of charge. The bus stop sign:

- Identifies the location as a bus stop.
- Includes the number/letter identifier for the bus route(s) using the stop and, when possible, the destination of the route(s).
- Displays the transit information telephone number.

There are multiple criteria involved in placing a bus stop sign. Concerns for passenger and public safety, convenience, bus stop visibility and passenger comfort must all be addressed. Signage designating stops will be placed at all BCRTA bus stops.

The following are general guidelines for bus stop sign locations and clearances:

- Every effort will be made to place bus stop signs on an existing utility pole or an existing standard.
- If an existing securement point is unavailable, the sign should be installed on an exclusive standard. In no case should the sign be located closer than 24 inches from the curb back.
- The minimum distance between bus stops is 528 feet (i.e., 1/10 of a mile).
- The bottom of the sign should be seven (7) feet above ground level, and the top should be no higher than ten feet.

## Concrete Board Pad Location

Boarding pads should be included at all bus stops that have 25 or more passenger boardings per day.

## Benches

Bus stops with 25 or more boardings per day can be provided with a concrete boarding pad and a bench.

## Shelters

Shelters should be provided for bus stops with more than 50 boardings per day. The placement of shelters is preferred to the cap and bench due to its superior protection from the elements. Through local regulations, however, some jurisdictions restrict their use. Each local jurisdiction should be contacted for the placement of a shelter.

## Caps and Benches

A concrete boarding pad with a cap and bench can be provided for bus stops that have boardings of 50 or more passengers per day where shelters are not permissible due to local ordinance.

## Trash Receptacles

Bus stops that have either a cap and bench or a shelter should be provided with a trash receptacle. At bus stops without a cap and bench or a shelter, a trash receptacle can be installed if a request has been made, the bus stop has boarding of 25 or more passengers per day and, the jurisdiction, business, or property owner agrees to empty the receptacle as needed, but at least weekly.

## Schedule Holders and Real-time Displays

All BCRTA fixed route and commuter buses will contain schedule holders and/or real-time displays that show bus arrival times and route information at a specific stop. BCRTA will actively seek opportunities to place schedule holders and BCRTA customer information at key locations along its fixed route and commuter bus alignment and at key destinations such as the Butler County Government Services Center. Major Transfer Centers and areas with more than 100 boardings per day should be provided schedule holders and/or real-time displays.

## Maintenance of Amenities

Well maintained bus stops and amenities are crucial to the image of BCRTA as well as the jurisdictions in which they are located. Maintenance of each amenity that meets BCRTA requirements and guidelines will be provided by BCRTA. Any damaged or dirty bus stop site or amenity will be immediately corrected to create a positive impression for transit patrons and the general public.

In those cases where a local jurisdiction or private property owner requests installation of a BCRTA amenity even though the minimum requirement cannot be met, it will be the responsibility of the party requesting the amenity to either maintain it or make arrangements with BCRTA to provide maintenance.

## Appendix A: Exhibits

## Exhibit 1: Summary of BCRTA General Public Transit Services

ROUTE NAME	ТҮРЕ	SERVICE DAYS	FREQUENCY	VEHICLE TYPE
R1 HAMILTON- MIDDLETOWN	MOTOR BUS	M, TU,W,TH,FR	60 MINS	CUTAWAY
R3 HAMILTON- OXFORD	MOTOR BUS	M, TU,W,TH,FR	60 MINS	GILLIG 30'AND/OR CUTAWAY
R6 JOB CONNECTION	MOTOR BUS	M, TU,W,TH,FR	120 MINS	CUTAWAY
U1/U1W CAMPUS CORE	MOTOR BUS	U1 and U1W: M, TU,W,TH,FR, U1W: SA, SUN	U1: 15 MINS U1W: 35 MINS	GILLIG 30' AND/OR CUTAWAY
U3/U3X AM and PM TOLLGATE LOOP	MOTOR BUS	U3, U3X AM/PM: M, TU, W,TH,FR U3: SA, SUN	U3 and U3X AM: 10 MINS U3 and U3X PM 15 MINS U3 (SA-SUN): 30 MINS	GILLIG 30' AND/OR CUTAWAY
U4/U4D WESTERN CAMPUS	MOTOR BUS	U4 and U4D: M, TU,,W,TH,FR, U4D: SA, SU	U4: 20-35 MINS U4D: 30-45 MINS	GILLIG 30' AND/OR CUTAWAY
Park and Ride(P&R)	MOTOR BUS	M, TU,W,TH,FR	30 MINS	GILLIG 30' AND/OR CUTAWAY

## Regional Routes: *R1*

8:30	7:30	6:30	5:30	4:30	3:30	2:30	1:30	12:30	11:30	10:30	9:30	8:30	7:30		7:30	6:30	5:30	4:30	3:30	2:30	1:30	12:30	11:30	10:30	9:30	8:30	7:30	6:30	MARKET STREET
8:31	7:31	6:31	5:31	4:51	3:31	2:51	1:51	12:51	11:31	10:31	9:31	8:31	73	9TH & YANKEE EB & 9TH & MAIN WB	7:33	6:33	5:33	4:33	3:33	2.33	1:33	12:33	11:33	10:33	9:33	8:33	7:33	63	HIGH & EAST Z
8:32	7:52	6:32	5:32	4:32	3:32	2:32	1:32	12:32	11:32	10:32	9:32	8:32	7:32		7:35	6:35	5:35	4:35	3:35	2:35	1:35	12:35	11:35	10:35	9:35	8:35	7:35	53	HIGH & FART
8:34	7:34	6:34	5:34	4:34	3:34	2:34	1:54	12:34	11:34	10:34	9:34	8:34	7:34		7:36	6:36	5:36	4:36	3:36	2.36	1:36	12:36	11:36	10:36	9:36	8:36	7:36	636	
8:36	7:36	6:36	5:36	4:36	3:36	2:36	1:36	12:36	11:36	10:36	9:36	8:36	7:36	OXFORD STATE RD. Q. & MAIN STREET SOUTHBOUND	7:38	6.38	5:38	4:38	3:38	2.38	1:38	12:38	11:38	10:38	9:38	8:38	7:38	6:38	PRINCETON SQUARE APARTMENTS
8:45	7:45	6:45	5:45	4:45	3:45	2:45	1:45	12:45	11:45	10:45	9:45	8:45	7:45	CENTER SOUTHBOUND	2						_	-		5	ω		4	m	NORTH BOUND WALMART
8:51	7:51	6:51	5:51	4:51	3:51	2:51	1:51	12:51	11:51	1051	9:51	8:51	7:51	SR-4 AT LE SOURDS VILLE LAKE SOUTHBOUND	40	6:40	5:40	4:40	3:40	2:40	40	12:40	11:40	40	40	¥0	46	åC	FAIRFIELD TOWNSHIP EASTBOUND
8:56	7:56	6:56	5:56	4:56	3:56	2:56	1:56	12:56	11:56	10:56	9:56	8:56	7:56	COUNTRYSIDE VILLAGE & SR 747 SOUTHBOUND	7:42	6:42	5:42	4:42	3:42	2:42	1:42	12:42	11:42	10:42	9:42	8:42	7:42	642 22	BRIDGEWATER FALLS NORTH BOUND
8:58	7:58	6:58	5:58	4:58	3:58	2:58	1:58	12:58	11:58	10:58	9:58	8:58	7:58	KYLE'S STATION KROGER	7:45	6:45	5:45	4:45	3:45	2:45	1:45	12:45	11:45	10:45	9:45	8:45	7:45	645 5	BUTLER TE CH NORTHBOUND
9:01	8:01	7:01	6:01	5:01	4:01	3:01	2:01	1:01	12:01	11:01	10:01	9:01	80	LIBERTY SQUARE	7:49	6:49	5:49	4:49	3:49	2:49	1:49	12:49	11:49	10:49	9:49	8:49	7:49	649 6	SR-4 AT LIBERTY- FAIRFIELD NORTH BOUND
9:03	8:03	7:03	6:03	5:03	4:03	3:03	2:03	1:03	12:03	11:03	10:03	9:03	803	BUTLER METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY	7:51	6:51	5:51	4:51	3:51	2:51	1:51	12:51	11:51	10:51	156	8:51	7:51	ß	KYLE'S STATION KROGER
9:04	8:04	7:04	6:04	5:04	4:04	3:04	2:04	1:04	12:04	11:04	10:04	9:04	8:04	BUTLER TECH SOUTHBOUND	7:52	6:52	5:52	4:52	3:52	2:52	1:52	12:52	11:52	10:52	9:52	8:52	7:52	6:52	COUN TRYSIDE VILLAGE & SR 747 NORTH BOUND
9:10	8:10	7:10	6:10	5:10	4:10	3:10	2-10	1:10	12-10	11:10	10:10	006	80	BRIDGEWATER FALLS WESTBOUND	7:57	6.57	5:57	4:57	3:57	2.57	1:57	12:57	11:57	10:57	957	8:57	7:57	65]	SR-4 AT MONROE CROSSINGS NORTH BOUND
9:12	8:12	7:12	6:12	5:12	4:12	3:12	2:12	1:12	12:12	11:12	10:12	9(12	812	WALMART FAIRFIELD TWP. WESTBOUND	8:04	7:04	6:04	5	4:04	3:04	2:04	1:04	12:04	11:04	10:04	9:04	8:04	7:04	KOHL'S DISTRIBUTION CENTER
9:17	8:17	7:17	6:17	5:17	4:17	3:17	2:17	147	12:17	11217	10:17	9/17	817	PRINCETON SQUARE APTS. SOUTHBOUND	¥	¥	¥	205	¥	¥	¥	*	2	4	4	4	¥	4	MAIN & OXFORD STATE
9:19	8:19	7:19	619	5:19	4:19	3:19	2:19	1:19	12:19	11:19	10:19	9/19	819	HIGH & FAIR WESTBOUND	8:11	7411	611	5:11	4:11	3:11	2:11	ä	12:11	TICH 1	10:11	9/11	8/11	ЗC	(DAD'S RESTAURANT) NORTH BOUND
9:21	8:21	7:21	6:21	5:21	4:21	3:21	2:21	1:21	12:21	11:21	10:21	9:21	8.21	HIGH & ERIE WESTBOUND	814	7:14	614	514	414	3:14	214	1:14	1214	11214	10:14	9/14	8:14	754	9TH & MAIN NORTHBOUND
9:22	8:22	7:22	6:22	5:22	4:22	3:22	2.22	1:22	12:22	11:22	10:22	9:22	822	HIGH & 7TH WESTBOUND	8:15	7:15	6:15	5:15	4:15	3:15	215	1:15	12:15	11:15	10:15	9/15	8:15	7215	MTS TRANSIT STATION
9:24	8:24	7:24	6:24	5:24	4:24	3:24	2:24	1:24	12:24	11:24	10:24	9:24	8:24	MARKET STREET STATION: AREA A															

5		<b>~-</b> O	
РМ	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	z 🛛	
TIMES IN BOLD	Market Street Station: Area A High & East Eastbound High & Fair Eastbound Princeton Square Apartments NB Walmart Fairfield Township EB Bridgewater Falls Northbound Butler Tech northbound SR-4 at Liberty-Fairfield Northbound Kyle's Station Kroger Countryside Village & SR-747 NB SR-4 at Monroe Crossings NB Kohl's Distribution Center NB Main & Oxford State Northbound 9th & Main Northbound MTS Transit Station MTS Transit Station 9th & Yankee EB & 9th & Main WB Oxford State Rd. & Main Street SB Kohl's Distribution Center Southbound SR-4 at Lesourdsville Lake Southbound SR-4 at Lesourdsville Lake Southbound SR-4 at Lesourdsville Lake Southbound SR-4 at Lesourdsville Lake Southbound Bridgewater Falls Westbound Bridgewater Falls Westbound Bridgewater Falls Westbound High & Fair Westbound High & Fair Westbound High & Fair Westbound High & Fair Westbound Market Street Station: Area A	MON-FRI ONLY Northbound	



R3	
NJ.	

11:10	9:10	7:10	6:10	5:10	4:10	2:10	12:10	11:10	10:10	9:10	8:10	7:10	ļ	) MIAMI STATION C	RG	10:05	8:05	6:05	5:05
TI:TI	9:11	7:11	6:11	5:11	4:11	2:11	12:11	mm	10:11	9:11	8:11	7:11	ļ	) STANTON HALL	So	10:08	8:08	6:08	5:08
_			_				_		_						uth	10:09	8:09	6:09	5:09
11:13	9:13	7:13	6:13	5:13	4:13	2:13	12:13	11:13	10:13	9:13	8:13	7:13	Ì	) INDIAN TRACE	Southbound	10:10	8:10	6:10	5:10
11:20	9:20	7:20	6:20	5:20	4:20	2:20	12:20	11:20	10:20	9:20	8:20	7:20	ł	SOUTHBOUND	hur	10:13	8:13	6:13	5:13
11:30	9:30	7:30	6:30	5:30	4:30	2:30	12:30	11:30	10:30	9:30	8:30	7:30	ļ	MEIJER/W. HAMILTON PARK & RIDE TO HAMILTON		10:15	8:15	6:15	5:15
11:32	9:32	7:32	6:32	5:32	4:32	2:32	12:32	11:32	10:32	9:32	8:32	7:32	Į	BOB EVANS		10:15	8:15	6:15	5:15
Ñ	N	2	2	2	Ň	2	22	2	Ň	2	2	2	Ì	·		10:15	8:15	6:15	5:15
11:33	9:33	7:33	6:33	5:33	4:33	2:33	12:33	11:33	10:33	9:33	8:33	7:33	ł	MAIN & BROOKWOOD EASTNOUND		10:22	8:22	6:22	5:22
11:34	9:34	7:34	6:34	5:34	4:34	2:34	12:34	11:34	10:34	9:34	8:34	7:34	ļ	) BUTLER CO. LUMBER		10:22	8:22	6:22	5:22
11:36	9:36	7:36	6:36	5:36	4:36	2:36	12:36	11:36	10:36	9:36	8:36	7:36	ļ	MAIN & EATON SOUTHBOUND		10:22	8:22	6:22	5:22
_	10		•	15			-	_	5		~					10:22	8:22	6:22	5:22
11:37	9:37	7:37	6:37	5:37	4:37	2:37	12:37	11:37	10:37	9:37	8:37	7:37	Ì	) ARMSTEAD PARK		10:22	8:22	6:22	5:22
11:38	9:38	7:38	6:38	5:38	4:38	2:38	12:38	11:38	10:38	9:38	8:38	7:38	ł	MARKET STREET STATION: AREA A		10:22	8:22	6:22	5:22
11:39	9:39	7:39	6:39	5:39	4:39	2:39	12:39	11:39	10:39	9:39	8:39	7:39	ļ	3RD AND DAYTON STREET SOUTHBOUND		10:22	8:22	6:22	5:22
11:44	9:44	7:44	6:44	5:44	4:44	2:44	12:44	11:44	10:44	9:44	8:44	7:44	Į	UNIVERSITY & GRAND		10:35	8:35	6:35	5:35
Ţ.	1	1	Ł	1	1	1	4	4					Ĭ	SOUTHBOUND		10:43	8:43	6:43	5:43
111:45	9:45	7:45	6:45	5:45	4:45	2:45	12:45	11:45	10:45	9:45	8:45	7:45	ļ	HAMILTON SOUTHBOUND		10:49	8:49	6:49	5:49
11:47	9:47	7:47	6:47	5:47	4:47	2:47	12:47	11:47	10:47	9:47	8:47	7:47	ļ	PLEASANT & FAIRVIEW SOUTHBOUND		10:51	8:51	6:51	5:51
11:50	9:50	7:50	6:50	5:50	4:50	2:50	12:50	11:50	10:50	9:50	8:50	7:50	ļ	LINDENWALD MEDICAL CENTER SOUTHBOUND		10:51	8:51	6:51	5:51
-	6	2		(J)	4	N		Ţ	10	10	m	~1		PLEASANT & FOSTER		10:55	8:55	6:55	5:55
11:51	9:51	7:51	6:51	5:51	4:51	2:51	12:51	11:51	10:51	9:S1	8:51	7:51	ĺ	SOUTHBOUND		10:58	8:58	6:58	5:58
11:55	9:55	7:55	6:55	5:55	4:55	2:55	12:55	11:55	10:55	9:55	8:55	7:55	ł	FAIRFIELD CROSSING PARK & RIDE WB		11:02	9:02	7:02	6:02

10:05	8:05	6:05	5:05	4:05	3:05	1:05	11:05	10:05	9:05	8:05	7:05	55 C	FAIRFIELD CROSSING PARK & RIDE EASTBOUND
10:08	8:08	6:08	5:08	4:08	3:08	1:08	11:08	10:08	9:08	8:08	7:08	:: :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::	HILL AVE. &
10:09	8:09	6:09	5:09	4:09	3:09	1:09	11:09	10:09	9:09	8:09	7:09	60 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0	PLEASANT & Ort
10:10	8:10	6:10	5:10	4:10	3:10	1:10	11:10	10:10	9:10	8:10	7:10	<u>ଶ</u>	NORTHBOUND Z PLEASANT & O FOSTER NORTHBOUND L LINDENWALD D MEDICAL CENTER NORTHBOUND C PLEASANT & D NORTHBOUND Q
10:13	8:13	6:13	5:13	4:13	3:13	1:13	11:13	10:13	9:13	8:13	7:13	613 C	PLEASANT & D FAIRVIEW D NORTHBOUND Q
10:15	8:15	6:15	5:15	4:15	3:15	1:15	11:15	10:15	9:15	8:15	7:15	ŝ	MIAMI UNIVERSITY ) HAMILTON NORTHBOUND
10:15	8:15	6:15	5:15	4:15	3:15	1:15	11:15	10:15	9:15	8:15	7:15	615 C	GRAND NORTHBOUND
10:15	8:15	6:15	5:15	4:15	3:15	1:15	11:15	10:15	9:15	8:15	7:15	្លួក	3RD & DAYTON STREET NORTHBOUND
10:22	8:22	6:22	5:22	4:22	3:22	1:22	11:22	10:22	9:22	8:22	7:22	6) 2)	MARKET STREET STATION: AREA B
10:22	8:22	6:22	5:22	4:22	3:22	1:22	11:22	10:22	9:22	8:22	7:22	612 22	MAIN STREET AND D STREET
10:22	8:22	6:22	5:22	4:22	3:22	1:22	11:22	10:22	9:22	8:22	7:22	6) 2)	MAIN & EATON STREET NORTHBOUND
10:22	8:22	6:22	5:22	4:22	3:22	1:22	11:22	10:22	9:22	8:22	7:22	622 22	MAIN & LAWN WESTBOUND
10:22	8:22	6:22	5:22	4:22	3:22	1:22	11:22	10:22	9:22	8:22	7:22	ŝ	MAIN ST. AND MCKINLEY AVE.
10:22	8:22	6:22	5:22	4:22	3:22	1:22	11:22	10:22	9:22	8:22	7:22	612 22	MAIN & BROOKWOOD WESTBOUND
10:22	8:22	6:22	5:22	4:22	3:22	1:22	11:22	10:22	9:22	8:22	7:22	6) 22 C	KROGER WEST HAMILTON
10:35	8:35	6:35	5:35	4:35	3:35	1:35	11:35	10:35	9:35	8:35	7:35	6:35 C	MEIJER/W. HAMILTON ) PARK & RIDE TO OXFORD
10:43	8:43	6:43	5:43	4:43	3:43	1:43	11:43	10:43	9:43	8:43	7:43	6:43 6:43	ISLAND LAKE PARK
10:49	8:49	6:49	5:49	4:49	3:49	1:49	11:49	10:49	9:9	8:49	7:49	6.49 649	INDIAN TRACE TALAWANDA
10:51	8:51	6:51	5:51	4:51	3:51	1:51	11:51	10:51	9:51	8:51	7:51	6 <u>5</u>	CHESTNUT AND MAPLE STREET
10:51	8:51	6:51	5:51	4:51	3:51	1:51	11:51	10:51	9:51	8:51	7:51	5 C	) OAK AND HARRIS
10:55	8:55	6:55	5:55	4:55	3:55	1:55	11:55	10:55	9:55	8:55	7:55	6:55 C	) RICHARD HALL
10:58	8:58	6:58	5:58	4:58	3:58	1:58	11:58	10:58	9:58	8:58	7:58	6:58	) OAK AND SPRING
11:02	9:02	7:02	6:02	5:02	4:02	2:02	12:02	11:02	10:02	9:02	8:02	7:02	) MIAMI STATION C



8	8:30	6:30	4:30	2:30	12:30	10:30	8:30	6:30	ł	
dul	8:31	6:31	43	2:31	12:31	10:31	83	631	Ī	
Inbound	8:32	6:32	4:32	2.32	12:32	10:32	8-32	6:32	١	FRONT & COURT SOUTHBOUND FRONT & WELSON SOUTHBOUND FRONT & CHESTNUT
d.	8:33	6:33	4-33	2-33	12-33	10:33	8:33	6:33	١	
	8:34	6:34	4:34	2:34	12:34	10:34	8:34	634	١	2ND & HANOVER
	8:37	6:37	4:37	2-37	12:37	10:37	8:37	6:37	١	HANOVER & MLK EASTBOUND
	8:38	6.38	4.38	2-38	12-38	10:38	8:38	638	١	HANOVER & EAST EASTBOUND
	8:39	6:39	4:39	2-39	12:39	10:39	8:39	6:39	١	HANOVER & 14TH EA STBOUND
r	1	ł.	ł	ł.	ł	I	I	I	44	KROGER HAMILTON/ GRAND WESTBOUND
	8:42	6:42	4.42	2:42	12-42	10:42	8:42	6:42	1	ERIE & GR AND SOUTHBOUND
D	8:43	6:43	4-43	2:43	12:43	10:43	8,43	6:43	\$	MCDONALD'S ERIE BLVD.
	8:48	6:48	4:48	2:48	12:48	10:48	8:48	6:48	<u>\$</u>	DIXIE HWY. & BOBMEYER SB
DL	8:49	6:49	4-49	2:49	12:49	10:49	8:49	6:49	<u>\$</u>	DIXIE HWY. & CORWIN SOUTHBOUND
	8:54	6:54	4:54	2.54	12:54	10:54	854	6:54	ŝ	FAIRFIELD CROSSING PARK & RIDE WB
	8:59	6.59	4-59	2-59	12-59	10:59	8:59	6:59	\$	BILSTEIN & SYMMES SOUTH BOUND
	8:59	6:59	4:59	2:59	12:59	10-59	8:59	6:59	\$s	SOUTHBOUND
	9:01	7:01	5:01	3:01	1:01	10:01	9:01	7:01	8	FAIRFIELD HIGH SCHOOL
	9:04	7:04	5:04	3:04	1:04	11:04	9:04	7:04	ä	PORT UNION & PROFIT EASTBOUND
	9:05	7:05	5:05	3:05	1:05	11:05	9:0S	7:05	۶,	PORT UNION & SEWARD EA STBOUND
	9:07	7:07	5:07	3:07	1:07	11:07	9:07	7:07	5	KDCH FOODS EASTBOUND
	9:09	7:09	5:09	3:09	1:09	11:09	9:09	7:09	ŝ	PORT UNION & LESAINT EASTBOUND
	9:10	7:10	5:10	3:10	1:10	11:10	900	7:10	ŝ	COLDPARK EASTBOUND
	9:12	7:12	5:12	3:12	1:12	11:12	9/12	7:12	ä	SR-747 & RIALTO SOUTHBOUND
	9:15	7:15	5/15	3:15	1:15	11/15	9:15	7:15	5	SR-747 & DEVITT SOUTHBOUND
	9:19	7:19	5:19	3:19	1:19	11/19	919	209	2	CRESCENTVILLE & CHESTERDALE EB
	9:20	7:20	5:20	3-20	1-20	11:20	9:20	7-20	2	CHESTERDALE AT VAL DOSA
	9:22	7:22	5:22	3:22	1:22	11:22	9:22	7:22	22	CHESTERDALE & KEMPER SOUTHBOUND
	9-28	7-28	5:28	3-28	1:28	11:28	9:28	7:28	ŝ	TRI COUNTY PARKWAY
	9:29	7-29	5-29	3-29	1:29	11:29	9:29	7:29	5	XXAM ET
	9:30	7:30	5:30	3:30	1:30	11:30	9:30	7:30	52	495E KEMPER RD, METRO CONNECTION

	9:30	7:30	5-30	3-30	1:30	11:30	9:30	7:30	۶	495 E KEMPER RD, METRO CONNECTION
+	9:33	7433	5:33	3:33	1-33	11:33	9:33	733	١	CHESTERDALE & KEMPER NORTHBOUND
2	9:36	7:36	5:36	3-36	1:36	11:36	95.6	7:36	۶	CHESTERDALE & VALDOSA
	9:37	737	5:37	3-37	1:37	11:37	937	7:37	ų,	CRESCENTVILLE & CHESTERDALE WB
	9.42	7:42	5:42	3:42	1:42	11:42	9:42	7:42	ž	) TYSON FOODS
	9:46	7.46	5:46	3:46	1:46	II):46	9:46	7:46	¥ ¢	SR-747 & RIALTO NORTHBOUND
	9:48	7:48	5:48	3:48	1:48	TI:48	9:48	7:48	¥ ¢	PORT UNION & OCLUPARK WESTBOUND
	9:50	7:50	5:50	3:50	1:50	11:50	9:50	7:50	۶	PORT UNION & LESAINT WESTBOUND
	9:52	7:52	5:52	3.52	1:52	11:52	9:52	7:52	۶	WESTBOUND
	9:53	7:54	5:54	3:54	1:54	IIIS4	9:54	7:54	ž ţ	PORT UNION & SEWARD WESTBOUND
	9:55	7:56	5:56	3:56	1:56	TI:56	9:56	756	۶	PORT UNION & INDUSTRIAL WESTBOUND
	9:59	7:59	5:59	3:59	1:59	1159	9:59	7:59	۶	FAIRFIELD HIGH SCHOOL NORTHBOUND
	10:01	8.00	6:00	4-00	2:00	12-00	10:00	8:00	۶¢	NORTHBOUND
3	10:01	8:01	6:01	4:01	2:01	12:01	10:01	8.01	§ ¢	) FIN-PAN
hound	10:06	8:06	6:06	4:06	2:06	12:06	10:06	8:06	۶¢	FAIRFIELD CROSSING PARK & RIDE WESTBOUND
2		8:09	6.09	4:09	2:09	12.09	10:09	608	ŝ	DIXIE HWY. & CORWIN NORTHBOUND
		8:10	6:10	410	2:10	12-10	10/10	8/10	۶¢	DIXIE HWY. & LAUREL NORTHBOUND
		8:13	6:13	4:13	2:13	12:13	10/13	813	8 ¢	) HAMILTON CROSSINCS
		8:14	6:14	4:14	214	12-14	10:14	8/14	₽ 2	) KROGER/ERIE BLVD.
		8:16	6:16	4:16	216	12-16	10:06	816	ş c	HANOVER & 14TH WESTBOUND
		8:17	6:17	4-17	2:17	12:17	10:17	8:17	٩¢	HANOVER & EAST WESTBOUND
		8:19	6:19	4-19	2:19	12-19	10/19	819	₿¢	HAN OVER & MLK WESTBOUND
		8.20	6-20	4-20	2-20	12-20	10:20	820	§ ¢	WASHINGTON & 2ND WESTBOUND
		8:26	6:26	4:26	2.26	12:26	10:26	8:26	Ş d	FRONT& CHESTNUT
		8-27	6-27	1	2-27	12-27	10:27	8:27	§¢	FRONT& WILSON NORTHBOUND
		8:29	6:29	4.29	2-29	12-29	10:29	8:29	§ ¢	COUNTY COURTHOUSE
		8:30	6:30	4:30	2:30	12-30	10:30	8:30	۶¢	MARKET STREET STATION: AREA B

## Cutboul Market Street Front & Court Front & Court Front & Chest Front & Chest Front & Chest Front & Chest Hanover & M Hanover & M

				)		)			)		)		
MON-FRI ONLY	M		Hanover & East WB	20	Koch Foods WB	9. Ko				Port Union & LeSaint EB	21.	Erie & Grand SB	Erie & C
			Hanover & 14th WB	힌	Port Union & LeSaint WB	p P		Metro Connection		Koch Foods EB	20	Kroger Hamilton/Grand WB	Goger
PM TIMES IN BOLD	PM		Kroger/ Erie Blvd.	Ħ	Port Union & Goldpark WB	7. Po		495 E Kemper Rd,	¥0	Port Union & Seward EB	톋	Hanover & 14th EB	Hanove
			Hamilton Crossings	17.	R-747 & Rialto NB	ţ۲ و		TJ Maxox	29	Port Union & Profit EB	, <mark>1</mark> 8	Hanover & East EB	Hanove
		NB	Dixie Hwy. & Laurel NB	Б	Tyson Foods	ي ح		Tri County Parkway	28	Fairfield High School	17.	Hanover & MLK EB	Hanove
26. Market Street Station: Area B	26	NB	Dixie Hwy. & Corwin Ni	ц	Crescentville & Chesterdale WB	4 0	œ	Chesterdale & Kemper SB	27.	ThyssenKrupp SB	ត្	2nd & Hanover	and & H
25. County Courthouse	N	trik & Ride WB	Fairfield Crossing Park & Ride WB	4	Chesterdale and Valdosa	щ		Chesterdale at Valdosa	26	Bilstein & Symmes SB	<del>بم</del>	Front & Chestnut SB	Front &
Front & Wilson Northbound	24.		Fin-Pan	ц,	Chesterdale & Kemper NB	2	ale EB	Crescentville & Chesterdale EB	25	Fairfield Crossing Park & Ride WB 25.	4	Front & Wilson SB	Front &
Front & Chestnut Northbound	N		ThyssenKrupp NB	12	Metro Connection	M		SR-747 & Devitt SB	24	Dixie Hwy. & Corwin SB	며	Front & Court SB	Front &
Washington & 2nd Westbound	22	rial NB	Port Union & Industrial NB	F	495 E Kemper Rd,	1" 48		SR-747 & Rialto SB	23	Dixie Hwy. & Bobmeyer SB	Ŗ	Market Street Station: Area B	Market
Hanover & MLK Westbound	21.	1 WB	Port Union & Seward WB	p	Inbound	Inb	œ	Port Union & Coldpark EB	22	McDonald's/Erie Blvd.	Ħ	Itbound	tb
-	_		-	-	-			-					



## **Ride Free** Every Day

and SafeRide operate free for everyone. All BCRTA fixed routes, paratransit services

ride using the transit app. Plan your trip and track your 

UI transit: DOMNLOAD NOW 7

## **Route Hours**

USE OUR TRIP PLANNER

Hours of operation vary by routes. BCRTA suspends or operates limited service on holidays and academic breaks.

Visit butlercountyrta.com for service alerts and schedule changes.

# **Customer Service**

513-785-5237 MON. THRU FRI. | 7 a.m. to 6 p.m.

## Bcrta

## TITLE VI NOTICE OF PUBLIC RIGHTS

the Butler County Regional Transit Authority (BCRTA) operates all servic outses and accommodations without regard to rese, coire, or national on n accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Any person we relieves she or he has been aggrieved by any unlawful discriminatory ice under Title VI may file a complaint and/or the Federal Transit Administrat

ore information on the BCRTA civil rights program and the procedures a complaint, call 513-785-445, or visit our administrative office at 304 r Court, Hamilton, Ohio 4501. A complainant may file directly with the Federal Transit Adr Administration by compli e Office of Civil Rights, Building, 5th Floor-TCR,

BUTLERCOUNTYRTA.COM | 513-785-5237



## **BCRTA Rider Guide:**





# 2023

Passengers are permitted to carry-on four (4) normal size shopping bags. Bags must be secured in either your lap or on the floor blow you. BRDRA recommends that all passengers wear a safety beit when available. Mobility devices must

MTS (Middletown Transit System) 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday-Friday

OFFICE HOURS

9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday-Friday 6 a.m. to 11 p.m. Monday–Friday

OFFICE HOURS

BCRTA

**OPERATION HOURS** 

- be secured in accordance with BCRTA policy.
- In accordance with Ohio State Law, certain children must be secured in an approved safety seat.
  - No smoking or electronic cigarettes
- No eating or drinking. Children under the age of twelve (I2) ride for
  - free and must be accompanied by an adult. BCRTA can accomodate all standard
    - mobility devices. BCRTA accomodates all service animals

to 6 p.m. Monday-Friday. Call 513-785-5237. All next-day BCare trip requests made by 600 p.m. will be accommodated. BCare trips

BCare riders must have an ADA-approved Reservations and cancellation requests

application on file.

request@butlercountyrta.com.

may also be emailed to

can now be scheduled up to 14 days in advance using the BCRTA BCare app.

Trip reservations are accepted from 7 a.m.

Reservations

## **TTLE VI NOTICE OF PUBLIC RIGHTS**

BUTLERCOUNTYRTA.COM

- - nt is svallable in alternative formats or languages
    - CUSTOMER SERVICE | MONDAY THRU, FRIDAY 7 A.M. TO 6 P.M.

# IMPORTANT INFO

**General Info** 

- All passengers must have exact change. BCo and BCare buses may arrive up to fift
- (I5) minutes before or after the scheduled pickup time under normal circumstances
- BGo and BCare buses will wait five (5) minul after arrival within the pickup window for a
- before the schedule pickup to avoid a charge passenger to board. Cancellations must be received one (I) hour

6:30 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. Monday-Friday

**OPERATION HOURS** 

8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Saturday

# 1045 Money CL, Har

# HOLIDAY CLOSURES

1045 MOSEE COURT HAMILTON, OHIO 45011

## Confidence **◊ Ride with**

## u transit

Plan your trip and track your ride using the Transit app.

## FIXED ROUTES

A Fixed route has designated streets and stops that it operates on. Passengers can only be picked up or dropped off at specific BCRTA or MTS Stops.

## RI: Hamilton/Middletown **Regional Routes**

- R3: Hamilton/Oxford
  - R6: Job Connector
- 42X West Chester Express (Cincinnati Metro)

# Oxford/Miami University Routes (U&P)

- UI: Campus Core
- UTW: Campus Core with Walmart Flyer
  - U3: Toligate Loop
- U3X: Tollgate Loop Express
- U4: Western Campus/North Loop
- U4D: Western Campus/North Loop
  - with Ditmer Park & Ride PR: Park and Ride

## **Middletown Routes**

 Green Line Cold Line - Blue Line Red Line

## **O Fares**

- BGo General Public. **BGo & BCare**
- FREE FREE ADA Hamilton/Oxford. ADA Middletown.
- Regional Routes. Fixed-Routes
- FREE FREE **BRIE**  Middletown Color Routes. University Routes (U&P).

## MANAGEMENT MOBILITY

BCRTA's mobility management services include individual and group travel training sessions, presentations and connecting individuals community outreach, transit education with transportation resources.

For more information contact Shannon Naegele at 513-785-4340 or

**Naegeles@butiercountyrta.com** 



# You can't bring your bike on the

Lower the rack Place bloston the rack Secure rack over the tire Notify driver upon exting

VOUR BINE

bus, but you can put it on the rack in front. If the rack is full, please wait for the next bus.

TRACK

## Paratransit Care

O

\$5 each way

transit agencies. For more information operating hours of the closest route. must fill out an ADA application and origin-to-destination bus service for be unable to ride fixed route buses. from any fixed route during regular Persons requesting BCare services BCRTA and MTS provide accessible also accepts ADA cards from other or to obtain an application, please persons with disabilities that may BCare transportation is available within three quarters of one mile be approved for services. BCRTA. call 513-785-5237 or visit butlercountyrta.com.





## U Routes: U1/U1W

	(		)	С	an	np	us	s C	Co	re	,	мс	DN	D	A١	1	гн	RU	JF	R	ID	A	Y,	0	NL	Y.													
PM		4:45	4:30	4:15	4:00	3:45	3:30	3:15	3:00	2:45	2:30	2:15	2:00	1:45	1:30	1:15	1:00	12:45	12:30	12:15	12:00	11:45	11:30	11:15	11:00	10:45	10:30	10:15	10:00	9:45	9:30	9:15	9:00	8:30	8:00	7:30	7:00	þ	MIAMI STATION D
TIMES		4:47	4:32	4:17	4:02	3:47	3:32	3:17	3:02	2:47	2:32	2:17	2:02	1:47	1:32	1:17	1:02	12:47	12:32	12:17	12:02	11:47	11:32	11:17	11:02	10:47	10:32	10:17	10:02	9:47	9:32	9:17	9:02	8:32	8:02	7:32	7:02	þ	COLE SERVICES BUILDING
_		4:48	4:33	4:18	4:03	3:48	3:33	3:18	3:03	2:48	2:33	2:18	2:03	1:48	1:33	1:18	1:03	12:48	12:33	12:18	12:03	11:48	11:33	11:18	11:03	10:48	10:33	10:18	10:03	9:48	9:33	9:18	9:03	8:33	8:03	7:33	7:03	þ	EAST QUAD
N BC		4:49	4:34	4:19	4:04	3:49	3:34	3:19	3:04	2:49	2:34	2:19	2:04	1:49	1:34	1:19	1:04	12:49	12:34	12:19	12:04	11:49	11:34	11:19	11:04	10:49	10:34	10:19	10:04	9:49	9:34	9:19	9:04	8:34	8:04	7:34	7:04	ç	FARMER SCHOOL BENTON HALL HIGH & UNIVERSITY
BOLD		4:54	4:39	4:24	4:09	3:54	3:39	3:24	3:09	2:54	2:39	2:24	2:09	1:54	1:39	1:24	1:09	12:54	12:39	12:24	12:09	11:54	11:39	11:24	11:09	10:54	10:39	10:24	10:09	9:54	9:39	9:24	9:09	8:39	8:09	7:39	7:09	ç	UPTOWN PARK HIGH & LOCUST TACO BELL
		4:58	4:43	4:28	4:13	3:58	3:43	3:28	3:13	2:58	2:43	2:28	2:13	1:58	1:43	1:28	1:13	12:58	12:43	12:28	12:13	11:58	11:43	11:28	11:13	10:58	10:43	10:28	10:13	9:58	9:43	9:28	9:13	8:43	8:13	7:43	7:13	ç	KROGER STEWART SQUARE S. MAIN/E. SPRING HANNA HOUSE
		5:05	4:50	4:35	4:20	4:05	3:50	3:35	3:20	3:05	2:50	2:35	2:20	2:05	1:50	1:35	1:20	1:05	12:50	12:35	12:20	12:05	11:50	11:35	11:20	11:05	10:50	10:35	10:20	10:05	9:50	9:35	9:20	8:50	8:20	7:50	7:20	þ	GOGGIN CENTER
		5:06	4:51	4:36	4:21	4:06	3:51	3:36	3:21	3:06	2:51	2:36	2:21	2:06	1:51	1:36	1:21	1:06	12:51	12:36	12:21	12:06	11:51	11:36	11:21	11:06	10:51	10:36	10:21	10:06	9:51	9:36	9:21	8:51	08:21	7:51	7:21	þ	REC CENTER
		5:08	4:53	4:38	4:23	4:08	3:53	3:38	3:23	3:08	2:53	2:38	2:23	2:08	1:53	1:38	1:23	1:08	12:53	12:38	12:23	12:08	11:53	11:38	11:23	11:08	10:53	10:38	10:23	10:08	9:53	9:38	9:23	8:53	8:23	7:53	7:23	þ	MORRIS HALL
		5:10	4:55	4:40	4:25	4:10	3:55	3:40	3:25	3:10	2:55	2:40	2:25	2:10	1:55	1:40	1:25	1:10	12:55	12:40	12:25	12:10	11:55	11:40	11:25	11:10	10:55	10:40	10:25	10:10	9:55	9:40	9:25	8:55	8:25	7:55	7:25	ç	MIAMI STATION D





CHESTNUT FIELD	COLLECE & CENTRAL	FoxFille DR & COLLECE	FOXFIRE DR & LOCUST		KROCER	STEWART SQUARE	SPRING & MAIN EB	HANNA HOUSE	MIAMI STATION B	COLE SERVICES BUILDING	EAST QUAD	FARMER SCHOOL		HICH & UNIVERSITY WB	CAMPUS & WALNUT SB	S. CAMPUS CARAGE	CAMPUS & CHESTNUT SB	CHESTNUT FIELD
530	6:32	6:33	634	6:35	6.37	6.38	6:40	6.41	6:42	6:44	6:44	6.45	6:46	6:47	6:48	650	651	6:53
6.37 5:44	6.39 6:46	6:40 647	641 648	6:42 6:49	6:44 6:51	6.45	6:47	648	6:49 6:56	651 658	651 658	652 659	653 7.00	654 7:01	6.55 7:02	6:57 7:04	6.58 7.05	7.00
6.51	6.53	654	6.55	656	6.58	6.59	7:01	7:02	7:03	7:05	7.05	7.06	7.07	7.08	7:09	7:0	7.12	214
58	7:00	7:01	7:02	7:03	7:05	7:06	7:08	7.09	7:10	7:12	712	7:13	714	7:15	7:36	7:18	719	7:21
7:05	7:07	7.08	2.09	7:10	7/12	713	215	7.16	7:07	7.09	7:19	7.20	7.21	722	7.23	7.25	7.26	7:28
7:12 7:19	7:14	7.15	723	7.17	7:19	7.20	7:22 7:29	7:23	7:24	726	7.26	7:27	7:28	7:29	7:30	7:32	7:33	7:35
726	7.28	7.29	7:30	7:31	7.33	7.34	7.36	7:37	738	7:40	7:40	7:41	7:42	7:43	7:44	7.46	7.47	7.49
7.33	7.35	7.36	737	738	7:40	7:41	2.43	2.44	7:45	7:47	7.47	7.4.8	7.49	750	7.51	7.53	7.54	756
7:40	7.42	7.43	244	7:45	7:47	7:48	7.90	7.51	752	754	7.54	7:55	7.56	7:57	758	8:00	8:08	8:03
154	7.96	757	7.58	759	8:01	8:02	8:04	8:05	8:06	8:08	8:08	809	8:10	81	8:12	8:14	815	8:17
8:01	8:03	8:04	8:05	8:06	8:08	8:09	8:11	8:12	8:13	8:15	8:16	8:16	8:77	8:18	8:19	8:21	8:22	8:24
8:08 8:15	8:10 8:17	8:11 8:18	8/12 8/19	8:13 8:20	8:15	8:16 8:23	8:18 8:25	819 826	8:20	8.22	8:22 8:29	8:23	8:24 8:31	8:25 8:32	8:26	8.28	8:29	8:31 8:38
8:22	8:24	8:25	826	827	8:29	8:30	832	833	834	8:36	836	8:37	838	8:39	8:40	8:42	8:43	8:45
3:29	8:31	8:32	8:33	8:34	8:36	8:37	8:39	840	8:41	8:43	843	8:44	8:45	8:46	8:47	8:49	8:50	8:52
5:36	8.38	8:39	840	8:41 8:48	8:43	8:44	846	8:47	8:48	8:50	8:50	858	852	8:53	8:54	856	857	8:59
8:43 8:50	8:45 8:52	846 853	8:47 8:54	8:48	850	8:51	853 9:00	854 901	8:55 9:02	8.57 9:04	8:57 9:04	9.05	859 9.06	9:00	9:01 9:08	9:03	9:04	9:06 9:13
8:57	8 59	9:00	9:01	9:02	9:04	9.05	9.07	9.08	9:09	9:T	9:11	9:12	9:13	9.14	9:15	9:17	9:18	9:20
1:04	9:06	9:07	9.08	9:09	9.11	9:12	9:14	9:15	9:16	9:18	9:18	9:19	9:20	9:21	9:22	9.24	9:25	9:27
9:18 9:18	9:13	9:14 9:21	9:5	9:16 9:23	9:18 9:25	9:19 9:26	9:21 9:28	9:22	9:23 9:30	9.25	9:25 9:32	9:26 9:33	9:27 9:34	9:28 9:35	9:29	9:31 9:38	9:32	9:34 9:41
9.25	9.27	9.28	9:29	9:30	9.32	9:33	9:35	9:36	9:37	9.39	9:39	9:40	9:41	9:42	9:43	9:45	9.46	9.48
9 32	9.34	9:35	936	9:37	9:39	9:40	9.42	9:43	9:44	9:46	9:46	9:47	9.48	9:49	950	9:52	953	9:55
3:39 3:46	9:41 9:48	9.42	9:43 9:50	9:44 9:51	9:46 9:53	9.47 9.54	9.49	9:50	9:51 9:58	9:53	953	9.54	9:55	9:56	9:57	9.59	10:00	10:02
9:53	9.55	9:56	957	958	10:00	10:01	10:03	10:04	10:05	10:07	10:07	10:08	10:09	10:10	10/11	10:13	10:14	10:16
0:00	10:02	10:03	10:04	10:05	10:07	10:08	10:10	10:11	10:12	10:14	10:14	10/15	1016	10:17	10:18	10:20	10:21	10:23
0:07	10:09	10:10	10:11	10:12	10:14	10:15	10:17	10:18	10:19	10:21	10:21	10:22	10:23	10:24	10:25	10:27	10:28	10:30
0:21	10:23	10:24	10.25	10:26	10:28	1029	10:31	10:32	10:33	10:35	10:35	1036	10:37	10:38	10:39	10:41	10:42	10:44
0:28	10:30	1031	10:32	10:33	10:35	10:36	1038	10:39	10:40	10:42	10:42	10:43	10:44	10:45	10:46	10:48	10:49	10:51
0:35	10:37	10:38	10:39	10:40	10:42	10:43	10:45	10:46	10:47	10:49	10:49	1050	1051	10:52	1053 TL00	10:55	1056	10.58 TLO5
0:49	10.51	1052	10:53	1054	10:56	1057	1059	1100	1101	11.03	11:03	11:04	1105	106	11.07	11:09	11:10	1112
0:56	10:58	10:59	1100	1101	T:03	R04	11:06	11:07	nos	π10	11:10	πn	1112	T13	1114	TR 16	11:17	1119
1210	11:05	TI:06	1307	1108	1110	1111 11:18	11:13	11:14	11 122	n 17 11.24	n77 11:24	TI:18 TI:25	1179	TL 20 TL 27	TR 21 TR 28	1123	1124	TL 26
1177	11.19	1120	1121	Tt 22	R 24	1125	1120	1128	Tt 29	11:31	11:24	Tt 32	Tt 33	11.34	1135	1137	1138	11140
1:24	1126	TL27	1128	π 29	11:31	1132	1134	Tt 35	Tt 36	11:38	11:38	1139	11:40	1341	Tt 42	R44	1345	TL 47
11:31	1133	1134	TL 35 TL:41	n 36 n 42	TL 38 TL 44	1139 11:45	11:41	TL42 11148	TL 43 TL 49	11:45 11:51	11:45	TI:46 TI:52	11:47 11:53	11148	π.49 π.55	1157	1158	1154
n:37 R:45	11:47	11:48	11249	11.92	11:52	1153	1:55	11:48	11:40	11:59	1159	12:00	12:01	TL 54	12:03	12:05	12:06	12:00
2:00	12:02	12:03	12:04	12:05	12:07	12:08	12:10	12:11	12:12	1214	12:14	1215	1216	1217	12:18	12:20	12:21	12:23
2:30	12:17	12:18	1219	12:20	12:22	1223	12:25	12:26	12:27	12:29	12:29	1230	1231	12:32	12:33	1235	1236	12:58
2:45	12:47	12:48	12:49	12:50	12:52	1253	12:55	1256	12:57	12:59	1259	100	101	102	103	105	106	1:08
:00	102	1:03	204	1:05	207	108	210	ъп	152	134	1:34	115	116	147	1:18	120	121	123
1:15	132	1:13	134	1:20	122	123	125	1:26	127	1:64	129	130	131	132	1:48	135	136	138
£45	132	148	1:69	1:50	152	153	155	1:56	1.57	159	159	2:00	2:01	2:02	2:03	2:05	2:06	2:08
200	2:02	2:03	2:04	2.05	2.07	2:08	2:10	2:11	212	214	214	2:15	2:16	217	2:18	2:20	2:21	2:23
215	2:17	2:18	2:19	2:20	2:22	2:23	2:25	2:26	2:27	2:29	2:29	2:30	231 246	2:52	2:33	2:35	2:51	238
:45	2:47	2:48	2.49	250	2:52	253	255	256	257	2:59	2:59	3:00	3:01	3:02	3:03	3:05	3:06	3:08
00	3:02	3.03	3:04	3.05	3:07	3.08	3:10	3.01	312	314	314	3:15	3:16	3.17	3:18	3:20	3:21	323
315 130	3:17	3:18	3:19	3:20	3:22 3:37	3:23 3:38	3:25	3:26	3:27	3:29	3:29	3:30	33	3:52	3:33	3:35 3:50	3:51	3:38
1:45	3:47	3:48	3.49	350	3:52	3.53	355	356	357	359	3:59	4:00	4:01	4:02	4:03	4:05	4:06	4:08
400	4:02	4:03	4:04	4:05	4:07	4:08	4:10	4:11	412	414	414	4:15	4:15	437	418	4:20	4:21	4:23
4:15 4:30	4:17 4:32	4:18	4:19	4:20	4:22	4:23	4:25	426	4:27	4:29	4:29	4:30	4:31	4:32	4:33	4:50	4:51	4:53
4:45	4:47	4:48	4:49	450	4:52	4:53	455	456	4:57	4:59	4:59	5:00	5:01	5:02	5:03	5:05	5:06	5.08
800	5:02	5:03	5:04	8:05	5:07	5:08	510	541	812	\$14	514	5:15	5:16	817	5:18	5:20	5:21	523
215 30	5:17 5:32	5:18 5:33	5:19 5:34	520 535	5:22 5:37	\$:23 5:38	\$25 5:40	8:26 5:41	5:27	5:29 5:44	5:29 5:44	5:30 5:45	5:31 5:46	5:32 5:47	5:33 5:48	\$:35 5:50	\$36 5:51	5.53 5.53
:45	5:47	5:48	\$49	535	5:52	5:30	5:40	5:41	557	5:59	5:59	6:00	6:01	6:02	6:03	6:05	6:06	6:08
6:00	6:02	6:03	6:04	6:05	6:07	6:08	6:10	6:11	612	614	614	6:15	6:16	617	618	6:20	6:21	623
6:15	6:17	6:18	6:19	6:20	6:22	6:23	625	626	6:27	6:29	6:29	6:30	6:31	6:32	6:33	6:35	636	638
6:30 6:45	6:32	6:33 6:48	634	6:35 6:50	6:37	6:38 6:53	6:40	6:41 6:56	6:42	6:59	6:59	6:45 7:00	6:46 7:01	6:47 7:02	6:48 7:03	6:50 7:05	6:51 7:06	653 7.08
200	7:02	7.03	7:04	2.05	7:07	7:08	7:10	731	7.12	714	714	7:15	7:16	277	7:18	7:20	7:21	723
	7:17	7:18	7:19	720	7:22	7.23	7.25	726	727	7:29	7:29	7:30	7.31	7:52	7:33	7.35	736	7.38
7:15	7:32	733	7:49	735	7:37	7:38	7:40	7:41 7:56	7:42	7:59	7:44	7:45	7:46	7:47	7.48	7:50 8:05	7:51 8:06	7:53
730		7:48						8:11	8:12	8:14	814	8:15	8:16	8:17	8:18	8:20	8:21	8:23
	7:47	7:48	8:04	8:05	8:07	8:08	8:10	0.11	0012	8114	0.1%	0.19						
7:30 7:45	7:47			8:05 8:35 9:05	8:07 8:37 9:07	8:08 8:38 9:08	8:10 8:40 9:10	8:41 9:11	8:42	8:44	8:4.4	8:45	8:46	8:47	8:48	8:50	8:51	853 923

PM TIMES IN BOLD

U3	Tollo	gate L	oop	SAT	URD	AYA	ND S	SUNE	DAY						РМ	TIMES	S IN B	OLD
CHESTNUT	COLLEGE A CENTRAL	POXFIRE DR	FOXFIRE DR	MELLS MILL	KROGER	STEWART SQUARE	SPRING &	HANNA HOUSE	MIAMI STATION B	COLE SERVICES BUILDING	EAST QUAD	FARMER SCHOOL	DENTON HALL	HIGH A UNIVERSITY WB	CAMPUS & WALNUT SB	S. CAMPUS GARAGE	CAMPUS A CHESTNUT SD	CHESTNUT
1130	11.32	TR 33	1134	11.35	11.37	1138	1140	1141	T142	R 44	7844	T145	TL 46	1247	11248	1150	1151	1153
12:00	12:02	12:03	12:04	12.05	12:07	12:08	12:10	12:11	12:12	12:14	12:14	1215	12:16	1277	12:18	12:20	12:21	12:23
12:30	12:32	12:53	12:34	12.35	12:37	12.38	12:40	12:41	12:42	12:44	12:44	12:45	12:46	12:47	12:48	12:50	125	12:53
200	102	103	204	105	107	1:08	1:00	101	112	114	194	1:05	116	177	118	120	121	123
130	132	133	134	135	137	138	1:40	341	342	244	1:64	1:45	146	147	148	150	រទ	153
2:00	2:02	2:03	204	2:05	2.07	2.08	210	211	212	2:14	214	215	2:96	2:17	2:18	220	2:21	2.23
2:30	2.32	2:53	234	2.35	2:37	2:58	240	2:41	2:42	2:66	244	245	2:46	2:47	248	250	251	253
3:00	3:02	3:03	304	3:05	3:07	308	3:10	311	3:12	334	314	315	3.96	347	318	320	3:21	3:23
3.30	3:32	333	3:34	3:35	337	338	3:40	3:41	3:42	3:64	344	3:45	3:46	3:47	3:48	350	3:51	3 53
4:00	4:02	4:03	4:04	4:05	4:07	4:08	4:10	4/1	4/12	414	4:14	4:15	416	4:17	4:18	420	4:21	4:23
4:30	4:32	4:33	434	4:35	4:37	438	4:40	4041	4:42	4:44	4:44	4:45	4:46	4:47	4:48	450	45	4:53
5:00	5:02	8:03	804	5:05	5:07	208	5:10	sп	912	534	\$14	215	5:96	547	518	520	5:21	5 23
\$30	\$:32	533	834	\$:35	\$37	538	\$40	8:41	\$42	5:64	244	2:45	5:46	5:47	5:48	550	551	2.53
6:00	6:02	6:03	6:04	6:05	6:07	608	610	еп	612	614	614	615	6:16	617	6:18	620	6:21	6:23
630	6:32	633	634	635	637	638	640	6:41	6:42	6:64	644	645	6:46	6:47	6:48	650	6:51	6:53
7:00	7:02	7:03	7.04	7:05	7:07	7.08	7.10	20	7.12	734	234	7.15	7:95	747	718	720	7:21	7:23
7:30	7:32	733	7:34	7:35	737	738	7:40	7:41	7.42	7:64	244	7:45	7:46	7:47	7:48	750	7:51	7:53
8:00	8:02	8:03	8:04	8:05	8:07	808	8:10	ап	812	8:14	8:14	815	816	8:17	8:18	820	8:21	8:23
830	8:32	8:33	834	8:35	8:37	838	840	8:41	8:42	8:44	844	8:45	8:46	8:47	8:48	850	8:51	8:53
9:00	9:02	9:03	9:04	9:05	9:07	9:08	9:10	91	912	934	9.14	9:15	9:36	9:17	9:18	9:20	9:21	9:23
9:30	9:32	933	934	9:35	937	938	9:40	9:41	9:42	9:66	944	9:45	9:46	9:47	9:48	950	9:51	9:53





## **Ride Free** Every Day

All BCRTA fixed routes, paratransit services and SafeRide operate free for everyone.

U transit. DOMNLOAD NOW

# **Route Hours**

USE OUR

surs of operation vary by routes. BCRTA spends or operates limited service on days and academic breaks.

Visit butlercountyrta.com for service alerts and schedule changes.

# **Customer Service**

513-785-5237 MON. THRU FRI. | 7 a.m. to 6 p.m.

## Bcrta

# TITLE VI NOTICE OF PUBLIC RIGHTS

at 513-785-523

BUTLERCOUNTYRTA.COM | 513-785-5237

















**®**crta

## U4 and U4D:

MIAMI STATION C	STANTON HALL	CHESTNUT & MAPLE	OAK & HARRIS	PORTER HALL	RICHARD HALL	OAK & SPRING	MCOUFFEY HALL	KINC LIBRARY	UPTOWN PARK	MAIN & WITHROW NB	WITHROW & COLLECE	SYCAMORE & COLLECE	SYCAMORE & POPLAR	WEST MILLET PARKING LOT	MILLETT	SYCAMORE & TALLAWANDA	& CHURCH	LAWS HALL	DITMER	ART MUSEUM	WESTERN LODGE	BOVD HALL	CHILD DEVELOPMEI CENTER	BEECHWOODS HAL	CHESTNUT FIELD	
ò-	-ö-	-ŏ-	-ò-	- <u>o</u> -	-0-	-0-	- <u>`</u> -	-o-	- <b>o</b> -	- <u>`</u> -	-0-			- <u>`</u>	- <u>`</u> -			-0-	-0-	ò	-0-	-0-	- <b>O</b> -	ō	-0-	Γ
_			_			-	12		-		_		12	12	1 -				_		_	_	-	1	6:54 7:02	L
-	-	- 1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	_	-	1	-	- 1	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	- 1	7:10	L
700	7:01	7:02	7:03	7.03	703	7:04	204	2.05	7.06	7:07	7.07	7.08	7:09	211	7.12	713	715	7:36	_	719	720	7:21	723	725	7.18	L
7.08	709	7:10	711	7:0	7:0	7:12	7.12	213	7:34	215	7.15	7:35	7:17	7:19	7:20	721	7:23	72.4	-	7:27	728	7:29	7:31	7:33	-	L
7.16	7:17	7:18 726	7.19	7:19	7:19	720 728	7:20	721 7.29	7:22	7:23	7:23	724	7.25	727	7:28	7:29	731	7:32		7:35 7:43	736 7:44	7:37 7:45	739 7:47	7:41		
7:32	7:33	734	735	7:35	7.35	736	7:36	7:37	738	7:39	7:39	7:40	7:41	7:43	7.36	7.45	7,47	7:48	_	7.51	7.52	753	755	757		L
7.40	7:41	7:42	7:43	7.43	7:43	7:44	244	7.45	7:46	7:47	7.47	7:48	7:49	751	7.52	753	7.95	7.96	-	7:59	8:00	801	8:03	8:05	-	L
7.48 7.56	7.49	750 758	7:51 7:59	7.51	7.51	752 8:00	752 800	7:53	754	7:55	7:55	7.96 8:04	7.57	7:59	800	8:01	803	8:04 8:12	_	807	8:08	8:09 8:17	8/11 8/19	8/13		
804	805	8:06	8:07	807	8:07	8:08	808	8:09	8:10	8:11	8:11	8.12	8:13	8/5	816	8.17	8:19	8:20	_	823	824	825	8:27	829	_	L
8:12	8:13	8:14	8:15	815	8:15	8:16	816	8.17	8:18	8:19	8:19	820	821	8:23	8:24	8:25	8:27	8.28	-	831	832	8:33	8:35	8:37	-	L
8:20 8:28	8:21 8:29	822 830	8:23 8:31	8:23 8:31	8:23 8:31	8:24 8:32	8:24 8:32	8:25	8:26 8:34	827 835	8:27 8:35	828	829	8:31 8:39	832 840	8:33	8:35 8:43	836 8:44		8:39 8:47	8:40 8:48	841 8:49	8:43 8:51	8:45 853	12	
8:36	8:37	838	839	8.39	839	8:40	840	8:41	8:42	8:43	8:43	8:44	8:45	8:47	848	849	8.5	852	_	855	8:56	857	859	9.01		L
844	845	8:46	8:47	847	8:47	8:48	8:48	8:49	850	851	851	8:52	853	8.55	856	857	8:59	9:00	-	9.03	9:04	9:05	9:07	9:09	-	L
852 900	853 9:01	854 9:02	855 9:03	8:55 9:03	855 903	856 9:04	856 904	8:57 9:05	8:58	8:59	8:59	9:00	9:01	9:03 9:11	9:04	9.05	907	9:08 9:16	-	9:11 9:19	9:12 9:20	9:13 9:21	9:15 9:23	9:17 9:25		L
908	909	9:10	911	9:11	9:11	9:12	9:12	913	9:14	9:15	915	9:16	9:17	9:19	9:20	9.21	9:23	9.24	_	9:27	928	929	9:31	9:33	- 1	L
916	9:17	9:18	9:19	919	9:19	920	9:20	9 21	9.22	9:23	9:23	9.24	9.25	9:27	9:28	9:29	931	9:32	-	9:35	9.36	9:37	9:39	941	-	
9:24 9:32	9:25	926 934	9:27 9:35	9:27 9:35	9.27 9.35	9:28 9:36	9:28	9:29 9:37	9:30 938	9:31 9:39	9:39	9:32 9:40	9:33	935 9:43	9:36 9:44	9/37 9/45	9.39 9.47	9:40 9:48	- 2	9.43 9.51	9:44 9:52	9:45 9:53	9:47 955	9:49 9:57		L
940	9:41	9:42	9:43	9.43	943	9:44	9.44	9.45	9:46	9:47	9.47	9:48	9:49	9:51	952	9:53	9:55	9.56	-	9:59	10:00	10:01	10:03	10:05	-	L
9.48	949	9:50	9:51	951	9:51	952	9:52	9:53	954	955	9:55	9.56	9.57	959	10:00	10:01	10:03	10:04	-	10:07	10:08	10:09	10/11	10:13	-	L
9:56	9:57 10:05	958 10:06	9:59 10:07	9:59 10:07	9:59 10:07	10:00	10:00	10:01	10:02	10:03	10:03	10:04	10:05	10:07	10:08	10.09	10/11	10:12 10:20	1	10:15	10:16	10:17	10:19	10:21		L
10:12	10:13	10:14	10:15	10/15	10:15	10:16	10:16	10:17	10:18	10:19	1019	1020	10:21	10:23	1024	10:25	10:27	10:28	-	1031	10:32	10:33	10:35	10.37	-	L
10:20	10:21	10:22	10:23	10:23	10:23	10:2.4	10:24	10:25	10.25	10:27	10:27	10.28	10:29	10:31	10.32	1033	10:35	10:36	-	10:39	10:40	10:41	10:43	10:45	-	L
1028 1036	10:29	10:30 10:38	1031 1039	10:31 10:39	10:31 10:39	10:32	10:32	10:33	10:42	10:43	10:43	10:36	10.37	10:39	10:40	1049	10:43	10:44	_	10:47	10.48 10.56	10:49 10:57	10:59	10:53		L
0.44	10:45	10:46	10:47	10:47	10:47	10:48	10:48	10.49	10:50	1051	1051	10.52	1053	10:55	1056	1057	10:59	π.00	-	1103	1104	1105	1107	TL09	-	L
052	10.53 Tt 16	10:54	10:55	10.55 Tt 18	10.55 Tt18	10.56	1056	10.57	10:58 11:21	10:59 Tt:22	10:59 TI22	TE 00 TE 23	T101 T124	TL 03	1104	1105	11:07	11.08 11.31	1	11134	TT 12 1135	1136 1136	1115 11:38	11140		L
1115 1130	11:31	11:17 11:32	1118 11:33	1133	1133	1119 11:34	1134	1135	11:36	11.22	R37	1138	11:29	11:26	TL27	11243	11:45	Tt 46	_	1249	11:50	1150	11:53	11:55	12	L
TL45	11:46	R 47	TL48	11:48	<b>Tt 48</b>	Tt49	TL49	1150	11:51	TT 52	1152	1153	<b>R54</b>	Tt 96	7157	1158	12:00	12:01	-	1204	12:05	1206	12:08	12:10	-	
200	12:01	12:02	1203 1218	12:05 12:18	12:03	12:04	1204	12:05	12:06	1207	12.07	12:08	12:09	12:11	1212	12:13 12:28	12:15	12:16	1	1219	12:20	1221	12:23	12:25		
230	12:31	12:32	1233	12:33	12:33	12:34	1234	12:35	12:36	1237	1237	12:38	12.39	1241	1242	12:43	12:45	12:46	-	1249	12:50	1251	12:53	12.55	-	
245	12:46	12:47	1248	12:48	12:48	12:49	1249	12:50	12:51	1252	12.52	12:53	1254	12:56	1257	12:58	1:00	1:01	-	1:04	1.05	1.96	1/08	1:10		L
1:00 1:15	1:01	1.02	1:03	1:03 1:18	1:05	1:04	1:04	1:05	1.06	1/22	1:22	1:08	1.09	1/11	1/12	1:28	1:15	1:16	12	1:19 1:34	1/20	1:36	138	1:25		
1:30	1:31	132	1:53	1:33	1:33	1:34	1:34	1:35	1:36	1.37	1:37	1:38	139	141	142	1:43	1:45	1:46	-	1:49	1:50	1.51	1.53	1.55	-	L
1:45 2:00	1:46	1:47	1:48	148	1:48	1:49 2:04	1:49	1.50	1.51	1.52	1:52	1:53	2.09	1.56 2:11	1:57	1:58	2:00	2:01 2:16		204	2:05	2:06	2.08	2:10	12	
215	2:16	2:17	2:18	218	2:18	2:19	2:19	2 20	2.21	2:22	222	2:23	2.24	2.26	2.27	2.28	2:30	2:31	_	234	2:35	2:36	2:38	2:40		L
230	2:31	2:32	2:33	233	2:33	2:34	2:34	2.35	2:36	2:37	237	2:38	2:39	2:41	2:42	2.43	2:45	2:46	-	249	2:50	2:51	2:53	2:55	-	L
245 300	2:46	2:47 3:02	2:48 3:03	248 303	2:48	2:49 3:04	2:49	2.50	2:51	2:52	252	2:53	2:54	2:56	2:57	2.58	3:00	3:01 3:16		304	3:05	3:06	3.08	3:10		L
315	3:16	3:17	3:18	318	3:18	3:19	3:19	3:20	3:21	3:22	322	3:25	3:24	3:26	3:27	3 28	3:30	3:31	-	334	3:35	3:36	3.38	3:40	-	L
330	3:31	3:32	3:33	333	3:33	3:34	3:34	3.35	3.36	3:37	337	3:38	3.39	341	3A2 367	3.43	3:45	3:46	_	349	3.50	3:51	3:53	3:55	-	
345 400	3:46 4:01	3:47	3:48	348 403	3:48 4:05	3:49	3:49	3:50	3:51 4:06	4:07	352	3:55 4:08	3:54	3:56	4:12	413	4:00	4:01 4:16	2	404	4:05 4:20	4:05	4:08	4:10	12	L
415	4:16	4:17	4:18	418	4:18	4:19	4/19	4:20	4:21	4:22	422	4:23	4:24	4:26	4:27	4:28	4:30	4:31	-	434	4:35	4:36	4:38	4:40	-	L
430 445	4:31 4:46	4:32 4:47	4:33 4:48	433 448	4:33	4:34 4:49	4:34 4:49	4 35	4:36	4:37	437	4:38 4:53	4:59	4:41	4:42	443	4:45	4:46 5:01	_	449 504	4:50 5:05	4:51 5:06	4:53	4:55 5:10		L
500	5:01	5.02	5.03	503	5:05	5.04	5:04	5.05	5.06	5:07	507	5:08	5.09	5:11	5:12	\$13	5:15	5:01	_	519	5:20	5:21	5:23	5:25	_	L
515	5:16	5:17	5:18	518	5:18	5:19	5:19	5:20	5:21	5:22	522	5:23	5:24	5:26	5:27	5.28	5:30	5:31	-	534	5.35	5.36	5:38	5:40	-	L
530 545	5:31 5:46	5:32 5:47	5:33 5:48	533 548	5:33 5:48	5:34 5:49	5:34 5:49	5.35 5.50	5:36 5:51	5:37 5:52	537 552	5:38 5:53	5.39 5.54	5:41 5:56	5:42 5:57	5.43	5:45	5:46		549 604	5:50 6:05	5:51 6:06	5:53 6:08	5:55 6:10	12	L
600	6:01	6:02	6:03	603	6:05	6:04	6:04	6.05	6.06	6:07	607	6:08	6.09	611	6/12	613	6:15	6:16	_	619	6:20	6:21	6:23	6:25	_	L
615	6:16	6:17	6/18	618	6:18	6:19	6:19	6.20	6:21	6:22	622	6:23	6:24	6:26	6:27	6.28	6:30	6:31	-	634	6:35	6:36	6.38	6:40	-	L
630 645	6:31 6:46	6:32 6:47	6:33 6:48	633 648	6:33 6:48	6:34 6:49	6:34 6:49	6.35	636 651	637 652	637	6:38 6:53	6:39 6:54	6:41 6:56	6A2 6:57	643	6:45 7:00	6:46 7:01		649 704	6:50 7:05	6:51 7:06	6:53 7:08	6:55 7:10		L
7.00	7:01	7.02	7:03	7.03	7:05	7:04	7:04	7.05	7.06	7.07	7.07	7:08	7.09	7:11	7:12	713	7:15	7:16	_	219	7:20	7:21	7.23	725	- 1	L
215	7:16	7:17	7:18	718	7:18	7:19	7:19	7.20	7.21	7:22	7.22	7:23	724	726	727	7:28	7:30	7:31	-	734	7:35	7:36	7:38	7:40	-	L
730	7:31	7:32	7:33	733	7:33	7:34	7:34	7:35	7:36	7:37	737	7:58	7:59	7:41	742	7.43	7:45 8:00	7:46	_	249 804	7:50	7:51	7:53	7:55		
815	8:16	8:17	8/18	818	8:18	8:19	8/19	8 20	8:21	8:22	822	8:23	8:24	8:26	8:27	8 28	8:29	8:30	8:35	839	8:40	8:40	8:42	843	8.35	
					8:48											8.58										

PM TIMES IN BOLD

UNITER STATE	TINH NOLINELL	APPART & MARTER	AAK & HAARIES	TIVH WILLIO	TWH GRIVING	Childs a MAC	TINH AMADOD	ANY INSURANCE	NEWS NUCLES	MANN B. WANN	WITHHOW & COLLECE	A COLLEGE	SPECIMENTS & POPLAR	WEST MILLET	ALATTING .	STEAMORE STALLANMARCH	A CHURCH	TINH SMY	STNSR	NUT MUSSION	VISTERN LODGE	TIMH GAD	CHLD DEVILOPMEN	TIVH BODOMHOS II	HESTMAT FIELD	
5	0	-õ-	-0-	-ò-	-0-	0	0	-0-	-0-	-0-	-0-	-0-	-0-	-0-	-0-	0	-0-	-0-	-ô-	0	ô	-0-	-0-	0	-0-	-
		-	-	Can	1.66			-	-	~		Cire.	1.000	1.00	-	-	1.100		-	-	-	· - · ·	1.000	-	17-34	
0	1121	1082	1133.	1:33	11:38	11.34	1:36	039	1016	1837	163.9	00.8	11.86	8-00	1-12	2-43	8:00	11:46	11:50	1164	11:55	11.58	10070	1254	-	11
•	12.06	12.07	11.08	1208	12:08	12.09	12.09	12:10	1811	11.12	19.12	12.0	12.14	1216	12.17	1218	1219	12:20	12.25	12:39	12:30	12.00	1252	12.35	-	"
0	1241	Tiel .	11:43	1363	12-8	12.66	12.66	11.48	1368	1147	847	13.00	12.48	12.01	12.63	12.65	1384	12.65	1.00	1.06	1.08	1.08	1.07	1.68	-	1
5	1.00	102	1:18	1:18	1/18	119	1/8	1.00	141	142	1.42	148	1.04	126	147	3.00	1.29	1.80	1.88	1.39	140	1:40	142	148	-	2
2	1.0	143	1.83	1.62	1.83	164	1.86	148	1.66	147	1.67	1.88	148	301	3.03	30	2.04	2.08	3.10	2,16	2,18	2,18	2.17	2.18	-	3
•	2.35	3:37	3-38	2.28	2:28	219	2.30	3:30	2.31	5.83	5.53	2.53	2.84	236	5.87	2.38	2.39	240	3:45	2,45	3.60	240	244	2.53	-	1
9	3.0	3.03	1.03	3.03	1.03	304	3.06	2.08	3.06	1.07	1.07	2.08	1.09	311	312	311	8.16	3.18	3.30	3.24	3.28	348	3,27	3.28	-	
	3.36	3.39	3.34	5.58	3.34	339	3.0	3.40	3(61	3.42	5.42	543	3:44	346	3,47	340	3.49	3.50	3.56	3.59	4.00	4.00	4.02	4.03	1	1
8	6.11	6.13	6.13	6.13	613	616	4,34	4.18	4.18	4-17	6.17	6.18	6.18	421	6.33	433	626	6.35	6.30	6.36	6.55	4.39	6.37	6.58		
•	4.45	4:67	4.48	6.68	4.48	44.0	4.0	4.50	4.51	4.52	4.52	4.53	4.54	456	4.57	4.00	4.59	5.00	5.05	5.09	\$10	\$10	5.12	613	-	1
0	848	6-23	843	8.23	848	824	8.26	8.45	8,20	847	8.27	8.38	8.29	881	8.82	8.32	8.24	8.03	540	244	5,45	848	847	848	-	
5	8.95	5.57	8.59	5.58	8.58	559	5.00	6.00	6.01	6.02	6.02	6.03	6.04	806	6.07	6.08	6.09	610	6.15	6.19	6.20	6.20	6.22	6.23	-	
0	8.03	6.52	8.2.5	6.53	8.25	636	8.36	6.33	8.26	8.27	8.37	6.55	6.38	841	642		844	648	6.50	6.94	6.85	6.00	8.87	6.62	-	
6	7.05	TOT	7.08	7.06	7.08	909	9.00	7/10	911	918	7112	713	7/14	216	717	2.00	719	7.20	7.85	7.29	7.30	7.30	7.88	7,53	-	7
•	7,68	743	7,68	743	7,68	764	7.00	7.65	7.64	TAT	TAT	748	748	98.7	7.62	788	7.84	7.68	8.00	ROS	8.68	8.05	8.67	ROB	-	1
8	8.16	617	818	6.18	818	819	8.19	8.20	8.21	823	8.22	623	824	626	8.17	4.00	8.29	830	8.35	8.39	840	8.40	8.42	843	-	
0	8.0	8.62	8.53	8.63	8.53	M64	8.95	8.85	8.56	8.57	8.57	8.58	8.68	801	9.02	905	8.04	9.05	910	914	915	9-15	9117	9.18	-	



## BGO Saferide Late-night Services TAP · BOOK · RIDE

BCRTA provides after-hours, door-to-door BGo Saferide services to safely transport individuals and small groups within the Oxford area. Advance notice is not required, service is provided on a first-come, first-served basis.

MON. THRU SAT. 10 p.m. – 3 a.m. SUNDAY 10 p.m. – 1 a.m.

Reserve trips by calling **513-785-5237** or through the BCRTA BGo app.





## **Exhibit 2: Title VI Complaint Form**



### **Title VI Complaint Form**

### Butler County Regional Transit Authority (BCRTA)

BCRTA is committed to ensuring that no person is excluded from participation in or denied the benefits of its services on the basis of race, color or national origin, as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Action of 1964, as amended. Title VI complaints must be filed within 180 days from the date of the alleged discrimination.

The following information is necessary to assist us in processing your compliant. If you require any assistance in completing this form, please contact the Title VI Coordinator by calling (513) 785-4346. The completed form must be returned to BCRTA Title VI Coordinator, 3045 Moser Court, Hamilton, Ohio 45011.

Your Name:	Phone:
Street Address:	Alt Phone:
	City, State & Zip Code:
Person(s) discriminated against (if someone other than co	mplaint):
Name(s):	
Street Address, City, State & Zip Code:	

Date of Incident:

Which of the following best describes the reason for the alleged discrimination took place (Circle one):

- Race
- Color
- National Origin (Limited English Proficiency)
- Sex
- Disability
- Age

Please describe the alleged discrimination incident. Provide the names and title of all BCRTA employees involved if available. Explain what happened and whom you believe was responsible. Please use the back of this form if additional space is required.

Complete reverse side of form

## Title VI Complaint Form

Butler County Regional Transit Authority (BCRTA)

Have you filed a complaint with any other federal, state or	local agencies? (Circle One) Yes / No
If so, list agency/agencies and contact information below:	
Agency:	Contact Name:
Street Address, City, State & Zip Code:	Phone:
540017002003, 01,9, 5000 to 219 0000.	
Agency:	Contact Name:
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Torte de la companya
Street Address, City, State & Zip Code:	Phone:
I affirm that I have read the above charge and that it is true	to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief.

Complainant's Signature

Date

Print or Type Name of Complainant:

Date Received: \_\_\_\_\_\_ Received By: \_\_\_\_\_

Title VI Information | File A Complaint & Learn More | BCRTA (butlercountyrta.com)

## BCRTA Resolution No. 23-03-02

## Approval of the Butler County Regional Transit Authority 2023 Title VI Program

Whereas BCRTA is a Regional Transit Authority created by resolution of the Butler County Board of Commissioners; and

Whereas as a designated recipient of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funds, BCRTA is required to comply with the Title VI regulations issued by the United Stated Department of Transportation (USDOT) as a condition of receiving federal funds; and

Whereas every three years BCRTA is required to submit a new Title VI program in accordance with USDOT's 49 CFR Part 21.7; and

Whereas in 2012 Federal Title VI requirements were updated by FTA and require that the Title VI program be approved by BCRTA's governing body; and

Whereas BCRTA's current Title VI Program will expire on March 31, 2023.

Now, therefore, be it resolved that the BCRTA Board of Trustees hereby approves the March 2023 Title VI Program and authorizes the BCRTA Executive Director to complete submission of the final program to FTA. Be it further resolved that the BCRTA Board of Trustees authorizes the BCRTA Executive Director to take any actions necessary to assure organizational compliance with the terms of this policy and regulation.

Approved: March 15, 2023

**Board President** 

**Executive Directo** 

## **Exhibit 4: BCRTA Vehicle Roster**

Туре	Vehicle #	Year
GILLIG	1501	2014
GILLIG	1502	2015
GILLIG	1503	2015
GILLIG	1504	2015
GILLIG	1505	2015
	1505	
GILLIG	1506	2015
GILLIG		2015
GILLIG	1508	2015
GILLIG	1509	2015
GILLIG	1510	2015
GILLIG	1511	2015
GILLIG	1512	2015
CARAVAN	1513	2015
CARAVAN	1514	2015
CARAVAN	1515	2015
CARAVAN	1516	2015
CARAVAN	1517	2015
F550	1520	2015
F550	1520	2015
E450	1601	2015
E450	1601	2010
E450	1602	2016
		_
E450	1606	2016
GILLIG	1607	2016
GILLIG	1608	2016
GILLIG	1609	2016
E450	1797	2017
E450	1798	2017
E450	1799	2017
E450	1895	2018
E450	1896	2018
E450	1897	2018
E450	1898	2018
E450	1899	2018
GILLIG	1901	2019
GILLIG	1902	2019
GILLIG	1902	2019
GILLIG	1903	2019
CARAVAN		2019
CARAVAN		2019
CARAVAN		2019
CARAVAN		2019
E450	2080	2020
E450		2016
E450		2020
E450	2083	2020
E450	2084	2020
E450	2085	2020
E450	2086	2020
E450		2020
E450	2088	2020
E450	2089	2020
E450		2020
E450		2020
TESCO GRAVEL	2280	
LOCO GRAVEL	2200	2022

## Exhibit 5: Safe Harbor Analysis 2023

	Butler County, Ohio				
	Total		Percent		
Label	Estimate	Margin of Error	Estimate	Margin of Error	
Population 5 years and over	368,204	±584	(X)	(X)	
Speak only English	335,522	±3,943	91.1%	(^) ±1.1	
Speak a language other than English	32,682	±3,986	8.9%	±1.1	
SPEAK A LANGUAGE OTHER THAN ENGLISH					
Spanish	11,640	±2,597	3.2%	±0.7	
5 to 17 years old	3,461	±1,679	0.9%	±0.5	
18 to 64 years old	7,363	±1,433	2.0%	±0.4	
65 years old and over	816	±461	0.2%	±0.1	
Other Indo-European languages	9,936	±3,182	2.7%	±0.9	
5 to 17 years old	2,654	±1,331	0.7%	±0.4	
18 to 64 years old	6,370	±2,057	1.7%	±0.6	
65 years old and over	912	±396	0.2%	±0.1	
Asian and Pacific Island languages	7,269	±1,849	2.0%	±0.5	
5 to 17 years old	687	±651	0.2%	±0.2	
18 to 64 years old	5,779	±1,481	1.6%	±0.4	
65 years old and over	803	±357	0.2%	±0.1	
Other languages	3,837	±1,901	1.0%	±0.5	
5 to 17 years old	511	±829	0.1%	±0.2	
18 to 64 years old	3,189	±1,308	0.9%	±0.4	
65 years old and over	137	±165	0.0%	±0.1	

According to the US Census Bureau (2021), Butler County, OH has significant LEP groups that trigger Safe Harbor Provisions. FTA C 4702.1B (2012) states that federal funding recipients need to provide translated material for each LEP language group that is "five percent (5%) or 1,000 persons, whichever is less, of the total population of persons eligible to be served or likely to be affected or encountered."

## Appendix B: Language Assistance Plan

## Improving Access for People with Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Four Factor Analysis

Butler County Regional Transit Authority (BCRTA) has conducted this analysis to meet requirements under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which seeks to improve access to services for persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP). The purpose is to ensure that no person shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA).

## Analysis Using Four Factor Framework

BCRTA has conducted the following analysis using the four factors identified in the DOT LEP Guidance:

## Factor 1: The number and proportion of LEP persons served or encountered in the eligible service population.

Task 1. Step 1: Examine prior experience with LEP individuals.

Since reintroducing local general public transit in 2005, BCRTA has experienced limited requests for LEP services. To request information in another language other than English, BCRTA provides a Google Translate widget on its website (<u>www.butlercountyrta.com</u>) and provides an over-the-phone interpreter service for riders. This gives LEP persons the opportunity to communicate directly with or to receive a call back from an interpreter. LEP service is tracked by the number of encounters and minutes our third-party interpreter is used to provide a request for services. From 2020-2023, BCRTA provided fifteen encounters with an interpreter. A braille translation of the BCRTA Rider Guide was requested. In addition, BCRTA works with local universities/social service agencies to provide interpreters and/or interpreted service information upon request. BCRTA also holds public meetings on a monthly basis. All notices for public meetings include notice that an interpreter will be provided upon request. BCRTA vehicles also have signage on board about the translation services offered to all customers.

Title VI Information | File A Complaint & Learn More | BCRTA (butlercountyrta.com) BCRTA Board Meetings | Schedule, Bylaws & More Information (butlercountyrta.com)


As of 2021, the U.S. Census Bureau quick facts population estimate of Butler County, Ohio was 368,204. According to the U.S. Census Bureau 2017-2021 American Community Survey, 8.9% of the county's population (age five and over) lived in a home where a language other than English is spoken, 3.2% persons identified as Spanish; 2.7% as other Indo-European, 2% as Asian and Pacific Islander language, and 1% as "other" language.

Task 1. Step 2A: Identify the geographic boundaries of the area that your agency serves.

Butler County, Ohio is located in southwest Ohio. The City of Hamilton, Ohio is the county seat. Butler County is home to Miami University, an Ohio public university. BCRTA is also a part of the Cincinnati, Ohio Urbanized Area which principally consists of the southeastern portion of Butler County. BCRTA does serve all of Butler County, Ohio and, as capacity allows, within three (3) miles of the county border. The Middletown Urban Area of Butler County is principally served by Middletown Transit, a small urban transit system.

Task 1. Steps 2B & C: Obtain and analyze census data on the LEP population in your service area.

U.S. Census Bureau 2017-2021 American Community Survey Five Year Estimate data for Butler County, Ohio reflects that 3.0 % of the Butler County, Ohio population is LEP (defined as speaking English less than "very well").

• LEP: Speak Other than English at Home and Do not Speak English Very Well:

14,101 persons (3.8% of the population). The LEP breakout by language:

- Spanish: 11,640 persons (3.2% of the population)
- Indo-European: 9,936 persons (2.7% of the population)
- Asian & Pacific Island: 7,269 persons (2% of the population)
- Other: 3,837 persons (1% of the population)



Task 1. Step 2D: Identify concentrations of LEP persons within your service area.

Figure 1 reflects the LEP persons in the areas of Butler County, all within the Cincinnati Urbanized Area of Butler County, Ohio. The areas of highest concentration include West Chester, Fairfield, downtown Hamilton, and Oxford.

Task 1. Step 3: Consult state and local sources of data.

BCRTA identified the following organizations and uses them to obtain information and best practices for LEP participation and involvement. The list of state and local partners that focus on improving access to LEP persons consist of:

- Ohio Department of Job and Family Services
- Ohio Means Jobs
- Education:
  - Butler County School Districts: Edgewood City, Fairfield City, Hamilton City, Lakota Local, Madison Local, Middletown City, Monroe Local, New Miami Local, Ross Local and Talawanda City
  - Butler County Educational Service Center English as a Second Language (ESL) Consortium
  - o Butler Tech
  - Hamilton City Schools

• OKI Regional Council of Governments

Task 1. Step 4: Community organizations that serve LEP persons.

BCRTA identified the following community organizations and uses them to obtain information and best practices for LEP participation and involvement. The list of community partners that focus on improving access to LEP persons consist of:

- Transit Alliance of Butler County
- Butler County Job and Family Services
- Interact for Health
- Faith Based:
  - Living Water Ministries
  - Hispanic Ministry of Hamilton
- Miami University (Oxford, Hamilton, Middletown Campuses)
- Ohio Department of Higher Education (ASPIRE)
- Butler County Educational Service Center (ESL)
- Collecting Warehouse

## Factor 2: The frequency with which LEP individuals come into contact with your programs, activities, and services.

Task 2. Step 1. Review the relevant programs, activities and services you provide.

Appendix A, Exhibit 1 of the BCRTA Title VI plan summarizes BCRTA services. Other than commuter park-and-rides services provided under contract by Cincinnati Metro, Butler County public transit services have been incrementally introduced since 2005. BCRTA provides Regional Commuter routes and Middletown night service in cooperation with the City of Middletown. BCRTA also provides public demand response services throughout the county, fixed route services for the City of Oxford, contract services for Butler County Board of Developmental Disabilities and the Butler County Veterans Service Commission.

Task 2. Step 2: Review information obtained from community organizations.

The Transit Alliance of Butler County, a nonprofit organization with a mission to create an effective, efficient and coordinated approach to meet the current and future local and regional transportation needs for Butler County citizens, agencies, and businesses, held a community forum on May 17, 2011, to discuss public transportation issues and unmet need. The common themes were additional evening and weekend trips for jobs, affordable fares, and increasing public awareness of current services. LEP access was not identified as an unmet need. In addition, LEP access issues were not identified in the region's locally developed Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plan, revised in 2016. BCRTA also identified organizations that improve access for LEP persons and sent surveys to request information, Figure 2.



### Improving Access for Limited English Persons (LEP)

BCRTA is seeking your assistance to assure all persons have equal access to the benefits of our federally funded programs and services. Please take a few minutes to answer these brief questions. This will help us to determine additional needs for transportation and interpretation services that ensure the best possible service to all clients, regardless of their language of origin.

Date:	Organization:
Contact Person:	Telephone:
	Email Address:

Geographic Service Area: \_\_\_\_

# of LEP Persons Served: \_\_\_\_

Has the size of LEP population you serve increased, stayed the same, or decreased over the past five years?

Increased Greatly \_\_\_\_ Increased Somewhat \_\_\_\_ Stayed the Same \_\_\_ Decreased \_\_\_\_

Do you use outside sources (volunteers, refugee service, etc. other than family to assist with the translations/interpreting? Frequently \_\_\_\_\_ Sometimes \_\_\_\_\_ Never \_\_\_\_\_

What source(s) \_

IN order of frequency, which language groups do you encounter when working with limited English proficient clients: (<u>1</u> being the most frequent and 7 being the least frequent):

Spanish \_\_\_\_ Bosnian \_\_\_ Russian \_\_\_ Arabic \_\_\_ African \_\_\_\_ Asian \_\_\_\_ Other \_\_\_

What needs or expectations for public transit services has this population expressed?

Has the population inquired about how to access public transit or expressed a need for public transit service? No \_\_\_\_\_ Yes\_\_\_\_ (Please explain)

Are there locations that the population has expressed difficulty in accessing via the BCRTA public transit service? No \_\_\_\_\_\_ Yes\_\_\_\_\_ (Please explain)

What is the best way to obtain input from the LEP population?

What additional agencies, organizations, and/or persons should BCRTA reach to analyze how to assure access to LEP populations in and around Butler County?

Would you like to be contacted by BCRTA to discuss BCRTA Service, LEP Assistance, or other public transit issues?

Yes \_\_\_ No \_\_\_

Figure 2

After reviewing records and contacting community organizations BCRTA has made telephone and website translation available in all requested languages. BCRTA will also make written materials available in all languages upon request. However, after speaking with community organizations BCRTA has assessed that lack of LEP resources is not the problem but rather the communication of their availability.

Task 2. Step 3: Consult directly with LEP persons.

To request information in a language other than English, BCRTA provides and tracks a Google Translate widget on its website and provides an over-the-phone interpreter service for callers. This gives LEP persons the opportunity to communicate their request and receive information at their literacy level and convenience.

To help ensure our interaction with LEP persons is consistent and positive, BCRTA operators carry language identification cards (Figure 3) to help identify interpreter needs for uncommon languages. Our new employee orientation process requires operators be trained and acknowledge BCRTA goals in regard to LEP policies and procedures.

The BCRTA goals are as follows:

- BCRTA will produce and distribute rider guides and other materials in commonly requested languages.
- BCRTA will provide, and office staff will be trained in the use of interpreter services that may be made available over the phone in a wide variety of other languages for the purposes of providing service information and scheduling services.
- BCRTA will provide, and driving staff will be trained in the use of interpreter services that may be made available over the phone in a wide variety of languages for the purpose of providing service information and clarifying operational passenger needs.
- BCRTA vehicle operator will carry, on their person, an emergency procedures pocket handbook that will include directions for assisting LEP individuals. The pocket guide will also include a "language map" to assist LEP individuals and BCRTA staff in determining the language of choice for any LEP individual.
- All BCRTA personnel who engage in regular client contact will be required to review this procedure and acknowledge their understanding and compliance in writing to ensure even application of the procedures mentioned herein.



Phone and Video Remote Interpreting | Certified Languages International *Figure 3* 

To help identify service needs of an LEP person, the BCRTA sends customer surveys (figure 4) to riders annually. The survey asks the rider to respond with a check mark in one of the following boxes; strongly agree, agree, or neutral.. The question to identify the LEP needs was, "A language barrier does not prevent me or someone I know from being able to use BCRTA services."



# Annual Customer Satisfaction Survey

### 2023



Scan Me!



 BCRTA Services Luse:
 U Routes (Miami U) \_\_\_\_
 Regional Routes (R) \_\_\_\_
 Middletown (MTS) \_\_\_\_

 ADA Service \_\_\_\_
 BGO (Demand Response) \_\_\_\_

For each statement, please check one response: Strongly Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly Disagree Agree 1. The vehicles are clean (inside and out). 2. The drivers are friendly and professional. 3. The call takers are friendly and professional. 4. I feel the drivers are safe. 5. Scheduling a ride is easy. 6. When I call, I am usually able to schedule pick-up at the time I want 7. I arrive at my destination (s) on time. 8. The bus arrives on time. 9. A language barrier does NOT prevent me or someone I know from being able to use BCRTA services. 10. Overall, I am happy with the service.

Please tell us more: \_\_\_\_\_

Would you like BCRTA to contact you? Yes \_\_\_\_ No \_\_\_\_\_

If yes, please complete the information below:

Name \_\_\_\_\_\_ Phone \_\_\_\_\_\_ Email \_\_\_\_\_

You may also contact BCRTA at (513)785-5237, request@butlercountyrta.com or by visiting:

https://www.butlercountyrta.com/customer-service/general-inquiry/ and filling out the contact form or

by sending us a letter in the mail at: 3045 Moser Court, Hamilton, Ohio 45011

Figure 4

The following reflects the answers reported in the BCRTA Customer Suvey

- 67.7% Strongly agreed that a language barrier does not prevent themor someone they know from utilizing BCRTA services.
- 21.5% Agreed that a language barrier does not prevent them or someone they know from utilizing BCRTA services.
- 10.8% Neither agreed or disagreed that a language barrier does not prevent them or someone they know from utilizing BCRTA services.
- 0% Disagreed that a language barrier does not prevent them or someone they know from utilizing BCRTA services.
- 0% Strongly disagreed that a language barrier does not prevent themor someone they know form utilizing BCRTA services.

### Factor 3: The importance to LEP persons of your program, activities, and services.

### Task 3. Step 1: Identify your agency's most critical services.

- Curb-to-Curb On-Demand (BGo)
- ADA Paratransit (BCare)
- Fixed Route Services

Critical information from BCRTA which can affect access includes service and schedule information, fare and payment information, system rules, and information about how to ride. However, public transit services continue to be limited in Butler County and are relatively expensive (demand-response fares). If limited English is a barrier to using these services, then the consequences for the individual are serious, including limited access to obtain health care, education, or employment.

However, the bigger issue is availability of public transit services in Butler County.

### Task 3. Step 2: Review input from community organization and LEP persons.

After reviewing records and contacting community organizations BCRTA has made telephone and website translation available in all requested languages. BCRTA will also make written materials available in all languages upon request. However, after speaking with community organizations BCRTA has assessed that lack of LEP resources is not the problem but rather the communication of their availability.

### Factor 4: The resources available to the recipient and costs.

### Task 4. Step 1: Inventory language assistance measures currently being provided along with associated costs.

From 2020-2023, BCRTA has experienced limited requests for LEP services. The experience has been almost exclusively requests for Spanish alternatives. To request information in another language other than English, BCRTA provides a Google Translate widget on its website and provides an over-the-phone interpreter service for riders. This gives LEP persons the opportunity to communicate directly with or to receive a call back from an interpreter. LEP passenger use is tracked by the number of encounters and minutes our third-party interpreter is used to provide

a request for services. BCRTA provided fifteen encounters with an interpreter.

BCRTA estimated costs over the last 3 years are between \$2,000 to \$5,000 to improve accessibility and provide additional LEP resources. This estimate includes upgrades to the website to facilitate more accessibility for LEP persons and \$1,907.86 spent on interpreter services.

### Task 4: Step 2: Determine what, if any additional services are needed to provide meaningful access.

Due to the small size of our agency, limited resources, public reviews and expected population growth, BCRTA should focus its language measures on extending access for persons by local awareness and advertising. In addition, BCRTA should include LEP related issues in all personnel training, including administrative, dispatch, and bus operator training.

### Task 4. Step 3: Analyze your budget.

Due to its limited size and services, BCRTA does not have a line-item marketing budget. However, BCRTA could allocate \$3,000 per year for LEP services.

#### Task 4. Step 4: Consider cost effective practices for providing language services.

BCRTA should collaborate with identified community organizations to provide cost effective practices such as 1) help with translations of printed and online information; 2) distribution channels for printed information; 3) translation assistance for LEP persons; and 4) educational and outreach opportunities to help improve access for LEP person. In addition, BCRTA should research and pursue language assistance products and translation services developed and paid for by local, regional, or state government agencies.

BCRTA has adopted the following implementation plan to meet requirements under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which seeks to improve access to services for persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP). The purpose is to ensure that no persons shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance from the FTA.

### Plan for Implementation

1. Identifying LEP individuals who need language assistance.

The four factor analysis indicates that the largest group of LEP persons speaks Spanish. In addition, the largest concentrations of LEP persons are in the Hamilton, Fairfield and West Chester township portions of Butler County which are within the portion of Butler County within the Cincinnati Urbanized Area.

Discussions with the bus operators and dispatch personnel indicate that the current frequency of contact with LEP persons has been extremely limited. However, there are demographic changes which could lead to a growing number of LEP persons in need of local public transit. BCRTA is proactively engaging with agencies serving LEP populations to stay informed about the needs of the community. This hands-on approach involves distributing information and monitoring interactions to gain insights into the language assistance needs of LEP individuals.

2. Language assistance measures

BCRTA will continue to track the Google Translate widget on its website and will provide printed materials in requested languages as well as identify distribution outlets to share such information. In addition, BCRTA will continue to maintain its over-the-phone translation service to allow LEP persons to receive service information in their native language.

BCRTA updates its implementation plan based on survey results and subsequently targets outreach to address new information.

3. Training staff

BCRTA bus operators, dispatch and scheduling personnel, and administrative staff may come into contact with LEP persons. Training on BCRTA's responsibility to serve LEP persons will be addressed as follows:

- BCRTA will post updated information on employee boards concerning BCRTA's responsibility on serving LEP persons.
- Orientation and initial training for new bus operators, and ongoing training and retraining sessions will include information on serving LEP persons.
- BCRTA will include information on serving LEP persons and BCRTA responsibilities in the BCRTA Employee Handbook which will be reviewed and verified (employee sign off) by each BCRTA employee.
- 4. Providing notice to LEP persons.

BCRTA will conduct outreach efforts to the target organizations and other organizations identified through the current survey. The Manager of Administration will lead these efforts.

5. Monitoring and Updating the LEP Plan.

BCRTA Board of Trustees reviewed and approved the 2017 LEP plan on February 15, 2017. The BCRTA Board of Trustees reviewed and approved the 2020 LEP plan May 20, 2020. The BCRTA Board of Trustees will review and approve the 2023 LEP plan on March 15, 2023.

The BCRTA Executive Director will review the LEP Plan and survey results annually with the BCRTA Board of Trustees. BCRTA will include an LEP question on its annual customer satisfaction survey. BCRTA will work with the Transit Alliance of Butler County to seek LEP representation on its Board of Directors.

The Executive Director and Operations Director will be responsible for monitoring the

plan, and reporting changes and updates to the BCRTA Board of Trustees.

### **Appendix C: Public Participation Plan and Hearings/Engagements**

OKI 2023 Strategic Regional Policy Plan: <u>https://www.oki.org/plans-and-programs/strategic-regional-policy-plan-how-do-we-grow-from-here/</u> OKI Transportation Improvement Program: <u>https://tip.oki.org/</u>

Short Range Planning Study (SRPS):

BCRTA Short Range Planning Study (SRPS) Public Engagement Round 1

Public Comments/Hearings, Service Changes/Removal of Routes R2 and R4:

Public-Comment-on-Proposed-Service-Suspension-9-21-21.pdf (butlercountyrta.com)

Public-Comment-on-Proposed-Service-Suspension-1-11-2022.pdf (butlercountyrta.com)

### References

FTA C 4702.1B. (2012, October 1). FTA C 4702.1B Federal Transit Administration. https://www.transit.dot.gov/sites/fta.dot.gov/files/docs/FTA\_Title\_VI\_FINAL.pdf

US Census Bureau. (2021). Explore census data. Explore Census Data. https://data.census.gov